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September 6, 2022 5 \

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Energy) to enter into an amendment to an existing SOLE SOURCE
Contract Agreement with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (VC#177203),
Concord, NH, by increasing the price limitation by $692,986 from $3,681,570 to $4,374,556 using additional
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds made available through the Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) and from remaining regular program year funds, both from the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through September 30, 2023. There is no time extension being requested for this
contract.

This contract was originally approved by Governor and Executive Council on December 8, 2021 (Item #47).
100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available for FY2023 in the following account:

Department of Energy, LIHEAP FUEL ASST

02-052-052-520010-33540000

LIHEAP FUEL ASST FY2023
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $692.986

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract that is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities. NH DOE proposes to continue to
subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services at the local level for
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the NH DOE Fuel Assistance Program
Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.

Through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (I1JA), the Department was awarded $774.475 in additional
Low Income Home Energy Program (LIHEAP) funds, known in New Hampshire as the Fuel Assistance
Program (FAP). In addition, an additional $3,578,451 in regular allocation funding was received for Program



Year 22 (PY22). This amendment adds at total of $4,352,926 in additional funds to the contracts and makes
them available to the Community Action Agencies for the upcoming winter heating season.

This Energy contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support eligible New
Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are in need of assistance to
help pay for heating costs during the winter season. LIHEAP/FAP is a federally funded statewide program that
makes home energy more affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New
Hampshire. Program funds are targeted to low-income households with high energy burdens. Federal law
establishes maximum income guidelines. Energy subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for
providing FAP services at the local level.

[n the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine,
Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

] SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELLKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated August 25, 2022 is between the State of New Hampshire Department of
Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafier referred 10 as the
“State™) and Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., P.O. Box (016, 2
Industrial Park Drive, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03302 (hereinafter the “Contractor”).

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Agreement”), as approved by Govemor
and Council on December 8, 2021 (Item #47), the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per
the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of
certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be’
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only after
approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agrecment. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

A) Price Limitation; Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking the
current sum of $3,681,570.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of
$4,374,556.00.

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking the current
sum of $3,681,570.00 and inserting in place thereof the total sum of $4,374,556.00.

Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of $310,798.00 and
inserting for administrative costs $380,097.00

Amend Exhibit C, sccond paragraph by striking the current sum of $3,211,572.00 and
inserting for program costs $3,835,259.00

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Aimendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full
force and effect in accordance with the lerms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it
cxisted immediately prior ta this Amendment.
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CONTRACT AMENDMENT NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
wrmen

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

State of New Hampshire
County of ___ Merrimack

On this _29™ day of ___ August, 2022 , before me, __Kathy L. Howard , the undersigned
officer, personally appeared - Jeanne Agri , who acknowledged himself/herself to be

the ___Chief Executive Officer _ of Communitv Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countics, Inc..
a corporation, and that she being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing i mslrumcnt for the purposes

contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 hereunto set my hand and official seal

Notary Public :
My Commission expires: ;‘Wm@'nmmm“m’ '_“":_';:' :

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF T% QETORNEY GENERAL
By: {4 '

AAssistant Attorney General
September 2,2022

Date:

I hereby centify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of

New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2022,
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
By:
Title:

CAPBM Amendment Contracior Inup_l QE"
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM
Z}/ ‘ BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
MPOWERING COMMUNITIES SINCE 1965

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

|, Dennis Martino. President, Board of Directors, hereby certify that;

1.1 am a duly elected officer of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, duly called
and held on January 13, 2022, at which a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director, Michael Tabory,
Chief Operating Officer/Deputy Director, Jill Lesmerises, Chief Financial Officer, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. to enter into contracts
or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable
or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby cerlify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This
authority remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further
certify that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this. certificate as evidence
that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have fuit
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any
listed individual to hind the corperation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 8/29/2022 Signature of Elected Officer Dmd ‘7%@1/%

Name: Dennis Martino
Title: President, Board of Directors

Rev 111342022
k. COA 2022 — dennis martino

Mailing Address P.O. Box 1016, Concord, NH 03302 Administrative Office 2 [ndustrial Park Drive, Concord, NH
Phone: 603 223-3295 | 1 800 856-5525 TTY/TDD_1 800 735-2964 Fax: 603 228-1898
Website: capbm.org



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERT[EICATE

. I, David M. Scenlan, Sccretary of S!atc of the Siate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify Lh:u COMMUN[TY ACT ION
- PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampsh:re Nonprof'l Corporation registered
o transact busmess in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965. | further certify thal all I'ccs and documcms required by the Secretary of

State’s office havc been Teceived and is in good standing as far as this ofﬁcc is concerned.

Busincss 1D: 63021
Certificate Number: 0005774597

, INTESTIMONY WHEREOF,
{ hereto sct m'y hand and cause to be affixed
the Scal of the State of New Hamp;hiré
this 91h day of May A.D. 2022,

David M. Sennlan

Sccretary of State




______ _ACORD®

[

DATE (MADDAYYYY)

CERTIEICATE-OF-LIABILITY-INSURANC E—-————|Preomon:

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE I3 ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED.BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

“IMPORTANT. I the ceriificate hokler Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions OF Be sndorsed, .
# SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condlitions of the pollcy, certain policles may raquire an endorsement. A statement on

this cartificate doos not confar rights to the cortificate holdor In llou of such andorsement(s].

PROCUCER SANTAGT  Andres Nicktin
FIAVCro8s Insurance PRONE _—(603) 669.3210 [, gy (60318454337
1100 Eim Street Anpress. Manch.cens@crossagency.com
. T _ INSURER(3) ATFORDING COVERAGE HAK 8
‘Menchester NH 03101 MSURER A; Seleclve Insurance Co. of SC . 19250
INSURZD . . wsurgr b: Oranils State Health Cars 2nd Human Services Seff- :
" Community Action Progrem Batknap-Merrimoack Counties Inc. ) wsurerc; Federsl s Co 20281
F.O. Box 1018 : SRR g
' . INSURER E ;
__ Concord . NH 03302 T
COVERAGES ' CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  21-22All22-23WC & DO REVISION NUMBER:
THIS 13 7O CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIGD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT 10 ALL THE TERMS, .
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,
R TYPEOF INSURANCE " POLICY NUMBER . (MUBDBNYYY, | (usDder rer] LaMTs
| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY : EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 1.000.000
| cLamsaane IE otcur PAGMISES [Bagcourance) | 8 1:000.000
- - , MED £XP (Aryoneperson) . | 3 20,000
A ] 52608940 W0V202) | YMON2022 [cpsona s aovmnry |5 1000000
| GEN AGGREGATE LiMIY APPLIES PER: OENERAL ACGREGATE s 3.000.000
| roucy [ ¢ 5ES;- Loc PRODUCTS - coupropaag | 3 3,000,000
OTHER: % $ -
AUTOMOBILE LWBILITY [T ED BRI 573 006,000
| ANy auTo ) i BOOILY INJURY (Perparson) | §
] SCHEOULED .
A [ ] momv soero p 52509940 10/01/2021 | 100172022 mu’:wm {Por acciderd) | 3
HRED HON-OVNE [ FROPERTY DAMAGE
|| Autos omy -AUTOS CHLY | Por peodent 2
. ' -
x UMBRELLA LIAB 5 o0CouUR , EACH m 3 6,000,000
A [ |excessiun e $2509940 - 100172021 [ 1000172022 | pcaneqare s 5.000,000
o_en] | agrenmon s - e 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION TH- N
|asoEurovens uasny —_ > srayre | (. e
B | e LN i E WERE CUTIVE ®ia HCHS20220000029 (3a.} NH 010172022 | 01/01/2023 |ELEACHACCORNT . 13 s
Mandstory In N} : £.L. DISEASE - EABMPLOYEE |3 T.000.
wo.luabunhr .- ) 1,000,000
SCAPTION OF OPERATIONS below €L OISEASE - POy LM [ g 1,000,
. . e , Uit - $1,000,000
¢ | Dectors & Oflosra Linbllty 82471794, 0410112022 | 040172023 | Deduyctible $5,000

Refes to policy for excluslonary endorsemants and special provisions,

CESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS } VERICLES {ACORD 101, Additionsl Remarks Schedule, muy be stiached it more space la required)

CANCELLATION

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

Stale of New Hampshire; Dept of Energy
21 South Frull Stree!
Sulle 10

Concord
|

NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRISED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED In
. ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo aro roglsterad marks of ACORD




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

INTERIM COMMISSIONER
Jared Chicaine

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER -
Christopher J, Eiims, Jr.

477

TDD Accass: Relay NH
1-800-735-2964

Tel. (603) 271-3670
FAX No. 271-1526

Website:

'DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY vww.energy.nh.gov

21 8. Fruil St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

November 16, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 0330!

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the Department of Energy (ENERGY) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract
with Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., (VC #177203), Concord,
NH, in the amount of $3,681,570 for the Fuel Assistance Program effective upon Governor and - -
Executive Council approval through September 30, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the folldwing account in FY 2022
-upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

.- Department ner el Assistance : FY 2022
02-52-52-520010-18870000 : '
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $3,68 I,ST0.00

- 2y Further request authorlzatmn to advance Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc. $358,757.00 from the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the histotical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshirc Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client
service capabilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs’
implementation of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is already
in place to deliver FAP services. ENERGY proposes to continue to subcontract with the five
CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with the ENERGY FAP Administrator in the implementation

“of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified
New Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are
targeted to low income houscholds with high energy burdens. The current maximum income



level is 60% of the State Median Income (SMY), which is $72,493.00 for a family of four. The
average FAP benefit during the last program year was $1,077.00.

The LIHEAP program operates on an October 1st'to September 30th program year. The contract -
amount for each of the Community Action Agencies is based upon Energy’s initial allocation
(90%) of our annual grant. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless federal monies’
are available to be expended. The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the
program between month Iy rclmbursements from the State.

~ In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer avmlab!e General Funds will not be
requested to support ‘this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Director

IC/EPS

Enclosures



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Neotice: This ggrtémcnl and all of its attachmentsshallbecome public upon submission to Govermnor and
Executive Council forapproval. Any information that is private, confidentialor proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prier to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION,

1.1 StateAgency Name
New Hampshire Depantment of Energy

21 South Fruit St,, Ste. 10
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

[.2 State Agency Address

1.3 ConmmctorName
Commuaity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

1.4 Coatractor Address
P.O. Box 1016,Concord, NH 0330}

1.5 ContmcrorPhone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number d 02-52-52-520010-18870000- | September30,2023 $3,681,570.00
(603)225-3295 074-500587 52E22A

1.9 ContractingOfficer for State Agency
Eileen Smiglowski, Fuel Assistance Program Administrator

-(603)271-3607

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

/\

1.1 ConlraclorSign e

'/Datc'
UU\Q (e ™iaao

Jeanne Agn, Executive Director

\ z

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

“Siate Agengy Slgnatur
M Date ////6/202

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
DSared Chicoin=
Toterm Covams &S (Drtae

y’IS Approval by the N\H. Depanment of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By:

Director, On:’

1.16 Approvalby the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

/22792

1.17 Approval by the Govemor and Executive Council (ifapplicable}

G&C Item number:

G&C Meeting Date:

| Page 1 of 4 -
. Contractor Initials
| : ‘ Datel]: 202



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Staie of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State™), engages contractor identifid in block 1.3
(“Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more panticularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and allobligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Govenor and Execulive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approvalis required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
. Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effeciive Daitc shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor,and in the event that this Agim:mem doesnot become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor- for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractormust complete all Services by the Completion Dale
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, elimmates or otherwise modifies thé
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hercunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of approprated funds the
State shall have the right to withhold payment unti such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event fundsin that Accountare reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT. _

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and temas of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nalure incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

- Page 2 of 4

compensation 1o the Contractor for the Services, The State shall
have no liability to the Contractorotherthan the contmet price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payableto the Contractorunder this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c orany otherprovision oflaw,

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
conirary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances. in no

. eventshall the totalofall paymentsauthorized, oractually made

hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forthin block 1.8,

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

'OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employmenmpportumty laws. Inaddition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federalexecutive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and wilth any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
Stare or the United Siates issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractorshall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws,

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
disciminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
onentation, or nationalorigin andwﬂl take affumative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contracloragrees to permit the State or United States -
accesstoany of the Contractor's books, recordsand accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with ali rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this

" Agreement.

7.. PERSONNEL.

1.1 The Contractorshallat its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractorwamants that
all personne! engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so underall applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authonzed in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a periad of six (6) months afier the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractorshall not hire, and
shall nat permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom 3t 15 engaged in » combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a Statc employee
or.official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administation or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

1.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative, [ntheeventof any
dispute concemning the interpretation of this-Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State,

Contractor Initials'
Datell- 19,2021



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractorshallconstitutean event of default hereunder (“Event
of Defaull™:

8.1.1 faire to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure 1o submit any repont required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 fature 1o perform any othercovenant, term orcondition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
takeany one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it 10 be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
dateof the notice; and if the Eventof Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days afler giving the
Contractornotice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Eventof -

Default and suspending 2l payments to be made under this
"Agreement and ordering thal the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall neverbe paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to'the Contraclarany damages the State suffers by reason of
sny Eventof Defauli; and/or _ ‘

8.2 .4 give the Contractora written notice specifying the Event of
Defaull, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure bythc Staleto enforce any provisions hereof after
any Eventof Defauli shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regand to that Event of Defaul, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Eventof Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce eachand
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Defoult on the pantof the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION. :
9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, lemminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thiny (30) days written -notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement,
9.2 1n theevent of an carly termination of this Agreement for
any rcason other than the completion of the Services; the
Contractor shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver to the
ContractingOfficer, not laterthan fifteen (15)daysafterthe date
of termination, a report ("Termination Repornt') descnbing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price camed, to
"and including-the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identicalio those of any Final Report described in the sttached
EXHIBITB. Inaddition, at the State’sdiscretion, the Contractor
shali, within 15 daysof notice of early termination,dcvelop and

Page 3 of 4

submit to the State a Transition Plan for scrvuccs under the

Agrecmcm

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

0.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shalimeanall
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of; this
Agreement, including, butnot limited 10, all siudies, reponts,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictonial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
represeniations, computer progra ms, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, allwhether
finished or unfinshed.

10.2 All data and any propeny which hasbeen received from
the State or purchased with fundsprovided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shali be the propenty of the State,ond °
shall be retumed to the State upon demand orupon termination
ofthis Agreement for any reason. :
10.3 Confidentiality of data shallbe govemed by N.H. RSA
chapter91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of dala requires
prior written approvalofthe State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all rcspccts
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority 1o
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Stateto its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to 1he State at least fifteen (15) days prior (6
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation,or a transaction orseries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of hifty percent {50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power ofthe Contractor, or (b) the salke of 2 ll or substantially ali
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontmc!cd by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of 1he State,
The State is entitled to copies of ali subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall notbe bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontractor an assignment agreement to which it is nota

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any persanalinjury or property damages,
patentorcopyright infringement, orotherclaims asserted 2 gainst
the State, its of ficers or employees, which arise cut of {or which
may be claimed to adse out of) the acts or omission of the

Contractor Inmals 9{3;
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Contractor, or subcontractors, nchuding but not limited 1o the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct: The State shall not
be linble for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
thisparagraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shallbe deemed to constitute a waiverof the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any

subconiracior or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the

following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all ¢laims

of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
" less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate

or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage fonm covering all property

subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than

%0% of the whole replacement value of the propenty.

14.2 The policies described in subparmgraph 14,1 herein shell be

on policy formsand endorsementsapproved foruse in the State

of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and

issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contmctor shall furnish 1o the Contracting Officer

identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a cenificate(s) of .

insurance for all insurance required under this Agrecment.
Contractorshalalso fumish tothe Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificaie(s) of insurance
for all renewni(s) of insurance required underthis Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the cxpu*atton date of each
insurance policy. The centificate(s) of insurance and any
rencwals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and wammantsthat the Contractoris in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chepter281-A (" Workerr
Compensation ).
15.2 To the extentthe Contractoris subject to the requirements
of NH. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subconlracior or assignee 10 secure and maintai,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuantto this
Agreement. The Contractorshall fumish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor,.proof of Workers'
" Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
atiached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Worker'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshie
Workers' Compensation laws in  connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

Page 4 of 4

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given atthetime .
of mailing-by centified mail postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein,

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybc amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hercto and only after approvat of such amendment,
woiver or discharge by the Govemor and Executive Council of

* the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is requured

under the circumsiances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be govemed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the Siate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutualintent, end no ruke
of construction shall be applied againsior in favorof any pany.
Any actions arising oul of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Supenior Count which shall have
exclusive Junsdlctlon thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. [n the cvent of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/orattachmentsand amendment thereof, theterms of the
P-37 (asmodified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any thid partics and this Agreement shall not be
construed to conferany such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughoutthe Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, smplify ornid in the
interpretation, construction or meaningof the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS.  Additional or modifying
provisioas set forthin the attached EXHIBIT Aare incorpora ted
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. [ntheeventanyofihe provisionsofthis
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction 1o 'be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be

.executed in a number of counterpans, each of which shall be

deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreementsand understandings with respect 1o the subject matier
hereof:

Contractor Initialsqu—
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10. CL UT OF CONTRACT. All final requu'ed reports and reimbursement requests shall be .
submitted to tate within thirty (30) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).

tl. ADVANCES. Advance funtdsqust be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance Program
expenditures. Advance program fun e to be used only for Fuel Assistance Program vendor
payments. All Fuel Assistance Program paysents, mcludmg Advance program payments, must
be transferred from the Community Action Ageisys general operating aécount into a specific
Fuel Assistance Program account within 48 hours afterbeing reccwed electronically from the
State. CAAs must submit the bank account number of the ated bank account for the

ad vance funds to NH DOE prior to the electronic submission of unds to the CAA. Unspent
Advance program funds must remain in the FAP dedicated account at Zthtjmes and cannot be
comingled with any other CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a complete_electronic copy
of the FAP-dedicated bank account statement to NH DOE on a monthly basis.

EXHIBIT B
SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees 10 provide Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low income
individuals, and agrees to perform all such services and other work necessary to operate the Program
in accordance with the requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel

CAPBM LIHEAP22 ' . ’ ExhibiisA. B& C
CFDAR9)S68 £ ' e Contractor Initials
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Assistance Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined

by NH DOE.

~

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be defined to include the following categonies:

L.

2z

Qutreach, eligibility, determination and certification of FAP applicants

Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services dehvered
b. Lines of credit
¢. Budget plan payments

Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as undefined
portions of their rent

Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in the
Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual and approve by the FAP Administrator

Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above :

EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the State-

agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $3,681,570.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as the

"Grant")
CAPBM LIHEAP22 ' Exhibits A, B & C

CFDAM93 568 Contracior Initial

puefliS 2021
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Upon the State’s receipt of the 2022 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from the
US Department of Health and Human Services, and Govemor and Executive Council approval, the

following funds will be authonzed:

$310,798.00 for administration costs, of which $37,600.00 will be issued as a cash advance; -
$3,211,572.00 for program costs, of which $321,157.00 will be issued as a cash advance; .
$159,200.00 for Assurance 16.

The dates for this contract are upon Governor and Council approval through Sqﬁtcmber 30, 2023.

An-Approval to Obligate (Exhibit 1) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.
Drawdowns from the baiance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation
of cash need 1s submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with

procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program Procedures Manual.

CFDA Title: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

CFDA No: 93.568
Award Name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
Federal Agency: Health & Human Services

Administration for Children and Families
Office of Community Services

CAPBM LIHEAP22 ' : Exhibits A, B& C
CFDA#93 568 ' “ - ~ Conmactor [nitia
Date {}: pl|
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and .12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification: .

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
'US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Fre¢ Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et'seq.). The January 31; 1989 regula.tlons were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplece. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for cach grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspcnswn of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government-wide. suspcnsxon or debarment. Contractors using this form

should send it to:

Director, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 So. Fruit St., Ste. 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantce'ccrtiﬁw that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free \\'forkplacc by:

{(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is probibited in the grantee’s workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

(1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) the grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

@) the penalties that may be imposed upon cmployecs for drug abuse violations occurnng in-
the workplace :

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

-(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
¢mployment under the grant, the employee will

n abide by the terms of the statemcnt and
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE 'WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont'd
P37 Exhibits D thru H
LIHEAP22 ‘
Page | of 7
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US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR :
: US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
2) notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.
\

(c) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shail include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subpamgmph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted: ;

(1) Taking appropnatc personnel action against such an cmployce up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or )

- {2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriatc agency.

® Makmg a good faith effort to continue to mamtmn a8 drug -frec workplace through implementation
OmeETﬂPhS (a), (), (c), (d), (¢), and {f). .

(B)  The grantee may insert in the space provided below the slte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant. .

Place of Performancc (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

%o mmum fﬁ:ﬁoﬁ !Jro oM :
elkr\ap mack Confes Inc.
Upon Govcmor & Council Approval to September 30, 2023
Contractor Name Period covered by this Certification

gg nnﬂ% av Chuef Execubi O‘Fgre(
Name and Title of Au d Contractor Representative

%U\J\ Q.Chp B I 15 2031

@ongractor Representative 81 ar . Date

. . P37 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Geaeral Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and [.12 of the General
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS '
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE -~ CONTRACTORS ;
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR B
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

- Programs (indicatc applicable program covcrcd)
' LIHEAP ¢

Contract Period: Upon Governor & Council Approval to September 30, 2023

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loa.n, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-

. contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appmpriated funds have been paid or will bc paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 2 member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying”,
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was

made or entered into. Submission of this certification is & prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction

unposcd by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
ject to a civil penal of not lcss than $10,000 and oot more than SI 00,000 for each such failure.

Chb C}ne(—‘ Executiue 0L cel

_ ( | Contractor chrgsm Contractor 5 Representative Tltle

o sa02
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisioas, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

~-(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. _

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy’s determination whether to énter into this transaction. Howéver, failuré
of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person
from participation in this transaction. :

(3) The-certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedics available to the
federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom

' this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroncous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspeided,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”
“participant,” “person,” “‘primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. Scc the attached definitions. :

(6) The prospcctive primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntanily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE. _

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, [neligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by NHDOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. _

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and '

frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,

check the Noa-procurement List (of excluded parties). ]

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shal! be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to rénder in good faith the certification required:by this clause. The knowledge and information of a_
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings. ' :

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into 2 lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,:
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default,

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND dTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont’d

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions

1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledgc and belicf, that it and its
prmcxpals

(a) are not presently debérred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or dcstructlon of records
maldng false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity .
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in pamgraph () (b) of
" this certification, and )

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more pubhc
(federal, state or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospective primary pa:nmpax_n is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an cxplanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proﬁosal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its-knowledge and belief that it and its principals: ‘

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily -
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the pms;icctive lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, [neligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
ier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in all solicitations for

U "~ Chief Executie Otrcer

3 Contractor csc ; ve lgnarurc Contractor’s chrcsentatwc Tltlc

prarunchy ﬂ;{'ton Q()O(Qm 91? \’:nfm MF nmqf pf)LmEQSI“
| Contracth_ﬂamc | Date- u ] (5 . aw

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Scctxons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followmg
certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

X L . d\\(ﬁg &)(_Q(u{%\(& O@%{e(

ntractor chrcscn\t;tiv@amrc Contractor’s Representative Title

- t‘é 809\1

P17 Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
. Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

In accordance with Part C of Public Law 103-227, the “Pro-Children Act of 1994", smoking may not be permitted
in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly used for the provision of health, day care, education, or
library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by federal programs either directly or
through state or iocal governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan
guarantees, and contracts. The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities -
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or facxlmcs used for inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment.

s
st | et

The above lshguagc must be included in any sub-awards that contain provisions for children’s scr\;iées and that
all sub-grantees shall certify compliance accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposition of a civil monctary penalty of up to $1,000 per day.

" VI .M — Chief Exocuknge 048 A(

Contractor ch Jentative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title _
Lo s "' |" ‘ | P ' :

.“l\. n‘ '.(“ . . ‘n A‘.' . '!’ ‘ I' | l‘ '} .’ A ]A. f C\
Contractor Mame Date u l50'l021

P37 Exhibits D thru H

LIHEAP22 ' P
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FAP Approval to Obligate

EXAMPLE ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGR
STATE : ' -
_ First 7/1/2019 Wood and SEAS Only ADMIN. FA PROGRAM
|CONTRACTED BUDGET '538,220.00 5,646,370.00
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE '~ 0.00 ~ 0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165,551.00°
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE  538,220.00 4,480,819.00
BMCA ; |
First 7/1/2019 | ADMIN. FA PROGRAM
|CONTRACTED BUDGET 95.663.00 1,003,586.00
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00
|THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00
. TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95,663.00 796,474.00
SNHS
First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM
{CONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,718,152.00
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00
|THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 . 354,578.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE  163,777.00 1,363,574.00
SCS .
First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM
|CONTRACTED BUDGET " 83,835.00 . §79,501.00
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED. 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE .0.00 181,504.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE . 0.00 181,504.00
" NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE  83,835.00 697,997.00
CAPSC .
First 7/1/2019 ) ADMIN. FA PROGRAM
' {CONTRACTED BUDGET 54,676.00 573,593.00

CVRC/AYTEMN DY IV T



AM

Exhibit I

SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
4,582.60 357,200.00 6,546,372.60 |
0.00 " 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 - 0.00
0.00 0.00° 1,165,551.00 |
0.00 0.00 1,165,551.00
.4,582.60 357,200.00 5.380,821.60
SEAS ASSURANCEI6 TOTAL
1,000.00 69,960.00 1,170,209.00 |
. 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 207,112.00 |
0.00 0.00 207,112.00
1,000.00 69.960.00 963,097.00
SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
1,000.00 84,220.00 1,967,149.00 |
| . 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 354,578.00 |
0.00 0.0 354,578.00
£,000.00 - 84,220.00 1,612,571.00
SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 |
0.00
0.00 0.00 . 0.00
0.00 0.00 181,504.00 |
0.00 0.00 181,504.00
825.00 64,960.00 847,617.00
SEAS ASSURANCE 16 - TOTAL
757.60 " 55,110.00 684,136.60 ° |

[alatal



[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

0.00 118,373.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 000 118,373.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE  54,676.00 455,220.00
TCCA | .
First 7/1/2018 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM °

[CONTRACTED BUDGET 140,269.00 1,471,538.00
EXPECTED BUDGET
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1303,984.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE  140,269.00 1,167,554.00

. LIHEAP21
'CFDA#93.568



0.00

000 -, 118,373.00 |

0.00 0.00 118,373.00
757.60 55,110.00 -  565,763.60
SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
1,000.00 82,950.00 - 1,695,757.00 |
. 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 303,984.00 |
0.00 000 303,984.00
1,000.00 82,950.00 £,391,773.00
P37 Exhibit ]
Contractor Initi

Dat 201\



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA), requires prime awardees of

individuzl federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or' more.
If the initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or

over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA réporting requirements as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information),

the New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award or

contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency

4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

5) Program source

"6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually, and

b. Compensation information is oot already available through repomng to the SEC.

Prime grant recnplents must submit FFATA -required data by the end of the month plus 30 days in which

the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transpareocy Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Ihfomalian), and
further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the

General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New

Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial

gIsparency Actl.

(Codtractor chrcscntalivc Si p Iurc) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

: P{mram Bl kap

s, 2021

(Coatractor Name). MQ(( [ma@- J:/]C (Date)

Comrac_(or Inigals % ( \

Date \\' \
Page | of 2
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NEW HAM?SHTRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

' STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. )

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 61 -399- 17599

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or orgenization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revemit in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2)-$25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federl contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

N

o) YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here. .
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the internal Revenue Code of 19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here.
If the angwér to #3 above is.N(_), please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Nam ' _ Amount:
e

Nam ) : Amount:
¢

Nam Amount:

e '

Nam ‘ Amount:

c: e 4 : )

Nam Amount:

Contractor Ipijal P(
D‘;t:'\{“‘gf%l\ _

Page 2 of 2
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Phone (603) 225-3255 2 Industrial Park Orive

(B00) 856-5525 - PO Box 1016
bt bt s BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES N, ety o
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

|, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors, hereby certify that:

1. ! am a duly elected officer of Community Action Pr ram Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

2. The followmg is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Drrectors duly called
and held on // 1y / Qo L2¢ atwhich a quorum of the Directors were present and voting.

VOTED: That Jeanne Agri, Executive Director, Michael Tabory, Deputy Director, Steven
Gregoire, Budget Analyst, Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors are duly authorized
* on behalf of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. to enter into contracts
or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of ils agencies or departments and
further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in htslher judgment be desurable

or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and
effect as of the date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached.

Such authority to be in force and effect until 5739/9033 | further - certify that it is
understood that the State of New Hampshire will refy on this certificate as evidence that the
person(s) listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that'they have full
authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any’
listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

' 1()/‘/ | /
Dated: é Z%{{Q B\ ‘W
: -7 Signature of Elected Officer
/ f; " Name; Dennis Martino -

Title: President, Board of Dwectors

L. HOWASD Notary Putiie, KH
. Ily Commission Expires m 17, 2028 .
Rev. 111212020
Wh.COMA - dernis manino
ALTON - CONCORD . EPSOM LACONIA NEWBURY SUNCOOK
Sanky Cantes .. ........... . 8787107 Aeo Center TIS 4800 Mbcicrm Brioh Mouang..... THR025) seoCever ... $24-3517 Mewbury Common N O i M TETS
Brnac! Vi HOAING ... 8751111 "0 WO eoee,,,, T24-4492 O S0P o rmsssass sns.w [ P TaIO360 Yanicr CON oo reere
Eerty Hotmd 3 .. TP-$497 FRANKLIN L T — ST
BELMONT ° 2 s i :;:Lm“ :’EMBR'OKE TILTON .
u-hap- Tar, HOuing ... 24678301 - ......”“3“ VBage ot -w?u: ..:':.. w5 18e2 s«ucm‘;....._....gl;.a.:ml
BRADFORD ctardvolly . MEREDITH PITTSFIELD
border Conler i TR 7104 merlocs S MO0 LA AV saricr Comtee e 4350487 ot b T et Yre

L S——— TR TS 434-13%8
By H000 ST v 4356411 ]



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Siate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby centify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELKNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC, is  New Hampshise Nonprofit Corporation registered.
to transact business in New Hnmpshﬁg on May 28, 1965. [ further ceriify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of
State's office bave been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business [D: 63021
Certificate Number: 0005338239

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hamnpshire,
this 2nd day of Apnil A.D. 2021,

Dok

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State




DATE (MMOG/TYYY)

A » * . '
ACORD" CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE ——

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE OOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES ROT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT- If tho certificato holdar ls an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must havo ADDITIONAL [NSURED provislona or be ondorsod.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the tarms and condltions of the phllcy. cartain policies may roquire an ondorsement. A statemont on
this cortificate does not confer rights to tha certifidate holder In liou of such endorsement(s).

PROOUCER Sgﬁ:“” Andrea Nicklin
FIAUCro33 Insuranco PHONE  (803) 880-3218 | i4S eep, (803 8454331
1100 Eirmn Streat icoatss, Mmanch.carafcroasagency.com
" (NSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIKC §
Manchestes NH 03101 wavRER A Seloctive Insurance Group |
WSURED : - wsunerR: Grinfio Stats Heslth Cere and Humen Services Sef-
Communtty Action Progrem Belkngp-Mermimeck Countles inc. wauren c . FodtralIna Go ] 20281
P, O. Box 1078 f NIUREA D ;
INBUREA E :
Concord ' NH 03302 e ;
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  21-22 A Incs WDO : : REVISION RUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAME D ABOVE FOR THE POUCY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER OOCUMENT. WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TQ ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REQUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

INIn OOLEUIRT PORYEFT | POLEYED
Im TYPE OF NEURANCE e POLICY NUMDER MwDoeTYYY) | (e M
5¢] coussACIAL GENERAL LIABIITY ) R EACH OCCURRENCE 3 1,000,000
—Jeumomoe [ occun ' '  PRENISES En conmmen) }4-1. 90000
’ MED EXP {Arry et pariie) [ ] 20,000
N e . S 2509940 100172021 | 100172022 [ pengomas saovorsmy | o 1000000
Emmoaemre LIIT APPUES PER: GENERAL AQGREQATE g 3,000,000
e D328 R | | e comorsoo | 30000
OTHER: b
AUTQMOGRE UABILITY ] . CE?W.E!E!ED:Q Tt 154,000,000
| ] anvauTo : BOOLLY (NJURY (Par porvon) | &
oo
OwneD SCHEOWLED
A || AUTos omey TSe S 250?940 100172021 | 100172022 | 800AY INURY (Par accident) | 3
HIRED HON-OWNED PAGPERTT DAAGE .
AUTOS ONLY ¢ AUTOS OnLY | (Poy pocidont) .
— .
> uneazuause |3 occun ' : EACH OCCUARENCE 35,000,000
A €xcess U R AR S 2500940 10012021 | 100112022 | sagaecare s 5.000000
oen | <] rerewnon s © i i - )
WORKERS COMPENSATION . CiK-
AND EMPOYERS LABIITY yin : KA I e
B | s eervoeor e [N [wea HCHS$20210000385 {32.) NH 020172021 | 02/01/2022 [ Bl EACH ACCIOENT E
{Mandatery In MH) ) ) €. DISEABE - A EmpLOvES | 3 1000000
F 4, descritn under T 1,000,000
SCRIPTION OF OPEAATIONS btiow L oisEsE - pouscy L | 3 1,009,
Olrectors & O . - Limit $1.000,000
ors
¢ eere Ligblby 82471704 04%0172021 | 040172022 | Deduciie 15,000
DESCRTION OF OFERATIONS { LOCATIONS f VEIICLES (ACORD 101, AddXiens Remerts Scheduls, mey be ttischad U more spase s requined)
Refer o policy for exchutionary sndorsements and speciel provisions.
k]
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE BXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Stats of New H ire; Depl of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

South troet

=l Fiulk Seed . AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Suite 10 ) i

Concong NH 03301

] . i
. © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights resorvad.

ACORD 25 {2016/03) Tho ACORD name and logo sro mglsterad marks of ACORD



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM .

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

LOW INCOME HOME ENERGY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

/8)1 302 - /30023

KEY PERSONNEL SALARIES AND ALLOCATION

% Pzid Amount Paid
Name | Job Title "1 "Salary * |’ from this from this
. ' . Contract Contract
Jeanne Agn Executive Director % _5:’9/b" 10 0% .00
Elizabeth Heyward | Community Services Director 69571750 50% | Q¢ 758 75]
Valerie Provenzano | Program Manager, Fuel Assistance 50% Qp_, 72 Sjaé

¥4 850.00



Jeanne Agri

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE

Verssatile and experienced leader with highly developed communication skills: writien, verbal and. presentational. Adept

in coaching and mentoring employecs and colléagues as evidenced by my selection by the National Office of Head Start to
" serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Commmcd to continuous improvement of activities to_ensure they meet

outcomes approved by the hg_a:rc_‘i_tl_}rgt_._ng!] sl;r:g_tqgi; planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with all

local, state ond federal guidance,

Community Acnon Program Bclknap Mcmmack Countlcs Concord NH

- “'Execunve Direc:or T T
 Assures the’ orgamzatmn has long-ra.nge strategy which makes consistent and ttmely progress towards meeting

WORK EXPERIEN CE

s e 20]8 -present

the Agencies overall mission

.Responsible for the- general superwsnon of all grant awards, cnsunng that all statutory, rcgulatory. and for

program and financial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting pnnciples are applu:d and
rhax.a.ll..p:ogr.am.and.ﬁnam:mJ.pc:hcms.zmd.pmc:t:dm:e.'uare.tldht:rt:d to

-Provide lcadcrshlp in developing programs, orgamzangnal structures and fi nnncml systems thal carry out the

instructions and policies authorized by the Board

Establish sound working relanonshlps and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources lmpommt to the development of the agency and programs.

See that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all

important Federal, State or local requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director ' - 2016 - 2018

USRS Y

Director of Child Development Programs

Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infent and Children, and
Ltterucy Programs as wcll as development of an agency wnde 'I‘wo Gcncranonal Approach to services
maximize output Momtor adherence to rules rcgulauons and proccdurcs

Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities :
Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedulcs and momtOrmg and evaluatmg performance in
partnership with Executive Director

Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational

plans
.2001-2016

Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Spcc.tal:sts Coordinators, Cemer
Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff

Provide coaching, and leaming opportumucs for all employees focused on promoting, supporting and
improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordmalors and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and dicection

Plan, coordinate and facititate rcgular Icadcrshlp meetings for evajueting and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards
Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parenl involvement, nutrition, disabilities , a.nd

transportation



+  Collaborate with managers and internal fiscal department in the monitoring and control of component

budgets; identification and interpretation of Head Start and community needs; conformance to the
~ Performance Standards and other regulatory requirements )

+ Workin partnership with internal departments to support project gosls and meet customerexpectations

+  Establish and maintain rclauonshnps and collaborations with public school districts, systems of h13hcr
education, and other community agencies and partners

+  Ensure adequate systems in place to maintain the highest quality of services to children and families in
compliance with Head Start Performance Standards '

»  Ensure consistency in service delivery across the program with attention 10 inclusive practices and
mtogratnon of component areas; encouragc contmuous 1mprovement of systcms

Quah‘tyAssurance Director/Co-Director for Child Deveiopmem Programs ' ‘ | l.9l9.9 EZOOVi
» Establishedand managed a-robust monitoring, analysis and evaluation system with well-defined results
milestones, and tergets inclusive of Continuous Quality Improvement practices
«  Monitored for quality and compliance at Grantee and Delegate level
+  Worked closely with program Director to review, track and assess monnonng compliance lhroughout

program operations
=  Developed and implements a written quality assurance and performance evaluation planin conjunctlon with

Govemning Board, Policy Council
+ Interpreted and evaluated a variety of information to present it in rneaningful oral or written form for
varied audiences and provide reliable analysis leading to sound decision-making

Area Manager /Education Manager 1997-1999
»  Supervision of various Child Care sites including direct supervision of Center Directors/Site Managers

»  Coordinate personal-and professional development and training plans for staff and ensure teaching staff
progress towards educational requirements as supported by the Performance Stapdards
+ Documented and administered both positive and negative feedback and utilize Performance

Improvement Plans' when warranted.

Child Care Center Director/Site Manager 1995-1997

»  Supervised, mentored, coach and administered work plans and directives to staff

Communicated areas of performance improvement to staff and promote training that reflected lndlwdual
needs of staff members and the team as a whole

TS Ensure program coriplidrice with ¢adés of state and-local licensing agencies and-grant requirements ~ -

New Hampshire Tecbnical College, Nashua, NH
Instructor 1995-1997
+  Taught Child Growth & Development and assisted in curriculum dcvelopmcnt for Early Childhood
~ Education Program
+  Planned and organized instruction to maximize documented student learning
+  Employed appropriate teaching and learning strategies to communicate subject matter to students
Modified, where applicabte, instructional methods end strategies to meet diverse student needs

EDUCAT!ON
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH
Master's in Business Administration June 2017
Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH
1981]

Bachelors of Arts in Elementary Education



.AElizab_e_t;h.H.ey;wa_r_-d._.....'n_ e e __

Highlights y

= Furidraising and event planning . o

« Relationship building expert ’

« Deadline-driven -
'« Donor database management e : T v
e 'Exceptlonal ‘multi-tasker ' T

o Decidive problem solvér. C
L. Organized and eﬁ"clent ‘ _ ) '
R Motivated team player R B SRR Y
«  Cross-functional team management SR
EXpCrlenCC : woosois e e
Community Servnces D:rector- August’lﬂl?-Present R P C Mo
ERISHH " 8 oo LA s BB T 2 § % clnps BN, Bl . Ty

o RespOnmblc for the planmng, schedulmg, mplemcutat:on and: momtormg of the
Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs. : P gl il —
. Responmblc forthe.developmentiof.internal opcratmg proccdurcs for,thc,F ue} and T
* . r itBlectric Assistance. Programs. compliance with: agency: and.funding. requlrcmcnts,
» Responsible for the developmcnt of thé opcralmg budgét for Fuel-and Electric
T Stance PTOBTAMS Bnd Area Center strUCtUre with'comphance with-agency and - -
funding source requirements. T ISR P G
. Rcspon51ble for the managcmcnt training,. superwswn and evaluation of Fuel and
' Electric AsSistance and area centér staff’ -+ - Hagyge ¢ B T gm W
» Responsible for compllmg and maintaining accurate records of programs
 statjstics, ﬁnanclal reports, reambursement rcqucsts for agcncy and vanous
fundmg SOUrces.. - : s : e ‘
Responsibié for developing and urnplcmcntmg outrcach plans and ccntmllzc Cllent
intake for Fuel and Electric Assmance Programs and othcr agcncucs services
provided through the area center structure. This will be doneg i in conjuncuon with
agency program and area center directors.
Re§pon51blc for securing adequate funding for Fuel and Electric Assistance
Programs and local funding of area center system by Jocal ¢ities and towns. _
Responsible for providing public relations and information related to Fuel and

v

’



Electric Assistance Programs and area cenlter services.

Responsble for coordinating with other program and area center directors on grant
development by other agency programs and services to meet local community
needs. -

Responsible for preparing, writing, and orgamzmg proposals and applications for

. Fuel and Electric Assistance Programs and area center programs.
. Responsible for the development and implementation of the information .ar{d

referral system used by the area center staff.
Responsible for the development and implementation of a community needs

~ assessment for the Agency and communities served.

Assist in-planning, development and implementation ofa data collections
soﬂwa.rc packagc w:th Lhc state and other Iocal CAP agcncscs

Director of Mission Advancement- June 2016- July 2017

Work with the Executive Director and other members of senior leadership to
develop the annual operating budget and identify the financial needs of the
orgamzatlon that must be met by fundraISmg,

Create and manage the annual development plan that encompasses individual and
institutional giving (foundations, corporation and partners),

Track key metrics, where success is measured by growth in-contributor numbers,
donor retention and doliars raised; ‘ .

Manage the development budget and assist the Executive Director in developing
individual Board member fundraising plans;

Manage the portfolio of donor prospects, including identifying, researching,
qualifying, cultivating and soliciting gifts from individuals, corporations, and

.foundations....... ... . ... . ... o A R

Support the Executive Director in major gift cultivation and solicitation efforts
through research, planning, strategy, moves management process.

Collaborate with the Executive Director to create individualized stewardship

plans for top contributors, including customized donor report.s and donor

recognition.

Manage the annual giving program, including communications, appeals, and
stewardship.

Personally acknowledge conmbutors and the impact of thc:r gifts.-

Manage budget [expenses and revenues] and staff on charitable gaming activities
and placement and sales of vending machines.

Effectively position/prepare the Executive Director and Board members for
interactions with major contributors and prospects.



. Prowdc ongoing inspiration, support, resources and training in fundraising to the
~ ‘Board-and-staff: -

o Manage the Development and Communications staff for message management
and effective use of the contributor database,; moves management and other tools,
.including-cause-related-marketing, cultivation events, etc.

« Collaborate with other GBS staff in the timely development of written
communications such as annual appeals, direct mail and advcnising.

‘e Travel to meet w1th top contributors in-addition to fundralsmg events.and board
meetings.

Dlrector of Community Relations- Marcb 2015—June 2016

_ e Treasure of the Private Provider Network.in Concg_(q.N_HH
e Assist in all fundralsmg events for Great Bay. [ncluding plan, and execution.
o Provide active representation at.focal and:state level events and meetings. .
o iStay currert and rcport back on recent state: and federal disability news..

e “Increase commumty awareness of thc orgamzauon clncnt sérvices, a.nd business

opportunities, '
o ‘Assist with the ncwslcttcr mcdla prcscntatlons marketing matcnals and
fundraising events.
‘& ‘Mike presentations at High Schools PTA s, and pa.rent groups. -
» Seek out other venues where groups of parcnts attend mcctmgs
~o* Meet with aréa Special Education Directors,
» Develop an active Business Advisory Council.

Associaté Director of Programs and Services September 2013- March 2015-Crcat
. -B-ay .Ser‘l:i.-c“ms—---u ::..--—-- A mera rEs o .- - . - - . - . PR TR S mer ea emts wens e re amee 1w e =

g '

e Oversees Clinical Services. Supervises Case Ma.nagcrs and Nurses. Qversees
Individual .

Scrwcc Plans, progress notes and other program documcntatlon Assures
coordiriation _

_between case managers and appropriate program staff.
o Coriductsintérdisciplinary staff meetings with case managers, nurses, residential

managers and community center staff to assure coordination of services, client
concemns, :

_ incidents and trends Facilitates problem solving and is solution focuscd
e Oversees Employment, Day and RCSIdCﬂtl&' Services. Reviews consumer

progress,

written reports and assures coordmatlon between all assugned managers.
‘Supervises all

direct care program managers.
e Isresponsible for the hiring and dismissal of all direct care staff.



o Responsible for orientation and training of program staff.

o Oversees Residential Managers

e Acts as liaison with funding and regulatory agencies including Developmental
Disabilities of Maine and New Hampshire.

e Assists in preparation of annual budget for services Responsible for contract

management
and compliance for all services reporting to the position.
e - -Oversees-consumer-admission, intake, program management, transfer and
discharge
decisions and procedures.
= Works in collaboration with and supports the Executive Director on various’

pr0_|acts and
mltlatlvcs & o& s W . o I -
s Assists the Exccutwc Dlrcctor in matters rclatmg to organizational operations:

Acts as
back up for the Executive Director in his/her absence.
¢ Coordinates orients and oversees placemcnts of volunteers and interns.

Program Manager for Employment Scrwccs October 2011- August 2013-Great Bay
Scrvxces :

Community Employment Coordinator; Grcat Bay Scrvnccs, November 2008- Octobcr
2011 '

Secretary: LEddy Center for the Performing Arts, July 2008- March 2009

K . i
Markcting and Communications Intern: Amphenol TCS, October 2007- August 2008

......

o MBA in Leadership: SNHU, Manchester NH ,
» Graduate Certificate in Leadership in a Not for Profit: SNHU, Manchester, NH
o Bachelor of Science in-Business Administration , Hesser College, Manchester,

NH
e Associates Degree in Public Relations, Hesser College, Manchester, NH

Skills and Training

o Constant Contact- Monthly newsletier

e Donor Perfect- Use this for our donor database.

¢ Attended the CASE Summer Institute in Educational Fundralsmg
e Microsoft Office- Word, Excel, Publisher, and PowerPoint

« Board of Directors fof_Epping Community Church



Valerie L Provenzano

& Profile
Experienced in office administrative and management skills
Excellent communication skills, assisting others and independent working-capabilities -

% Skills
Apphcatlons Mlcrosoft Excel Office, Word and Outlook, Qunckbooks
4 Work Egpenencc
Commuuity Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counnes Inc., Concord NH'
Fuel Assistance Program Manager, Commuuity Services Dept 672017 - prcsent

Responsibte for the day to day operations and management dutiés of the Federal Fuel Assistance program
(LTHEAP) in the Community Service Department. Assists in the planning, implementation, monitoring and
‘repditing of thie Fuel ASsistance program: Provides opérational management support.for.the office functions'in -
Concord and at.local centers, including applications, certifications, interaction with participants and vendor
inquiries, preparation and maintenance of record keeping:systems and-collection of data statistics for-all
- programs for funding requests-and reports: Assists in the certification.and processing of incoming FAP/EAP
applications to include vendor and client notification. Answers FAP/EAP office telephone calls to resolve

questions and inquiries. Provides FAP program.information, modilicafions-and procedure manual information
directed from OSI to Intake, Certifier(s) and program A/P clerk. Supervises Cemﬁcr(s) Maintains full
understanding and knowledge of and oversees the FAP invoice payment process, issuance, maintenance and
follow-up of FAP program Vendor contracts and fiscal procedures. Maintains knowledge of federal, state and
agency policies and procedures for effective implementation of the Fuel Assmtance Program goals and
objectives. -

‘Progrim Assistaat, Community Services Dept o 2/2009 - 62017

Assist Director with the admmlslratlou and management duties of the Federal Fuel Assistance Program
(LTHEAP) and State Electrical Assistance programs. Assist in the oversight of the intake and outreach functions
of the agency’s Area Center system. Provides clerical support for office functions in‘the Concord office and at
the local centers, including applications, certifications, interaction with participants and vendor inquiries;
~~preparation-and maintenance:o firecardskeeping:systems-and-collection-of data-statistics-for-alt:programs-for—
funding requests and réports. Cogrdinates the paperwork flow of information to participants, Area Center staif
‘and-other programs within the agency. Assmts in training and coachmg of Intake staff and Arca Center
Managers.

D&S Designs, LLC, Gilmanton TW,NH _ ‘ _
BookkeeperlOfﬂce Manager ' 2003 -11/2008

Responsible for managing the day to day office operations for this custom' fine cabinetry and furniture
company. Interact with clients and contractors to schedule work. Track progress and job costs of multiple

. projects. Utilize Quickbooks for billing, accounts payable & receivable, payroll, banking, time tracking, job &
supply ordering, budgeting, forecasting and marketing. Compose bid letters and proposals. Prepare and
maintain employee records and all human resource functions. Maintained sales literature and company website.
As needed, supervised Shop pcrsonnel and assusted with detail and finish work of cabinetry.

Palmer Gas & Oil Company, Atlunsou, NH
Sales Support Staff : 2001 - 2003
‘Assisted inside and outside Sales personnel. Scheduled sales personnel appointments and installation of

products and technicians. Client Communications. Assisted with general office duties and support.
: X ;



Eastern Propane & Oil Company, Loudon, NH )

Office Manager s 2000 — 200¢

~ Managed 6 office personnel. Responsible for hiring, training and motivation. Calculate and submit weekly
payrotl for 30+ employees. Submit accounts payable for department. General office duties: inputting and

maintaining all new/existing customer accounts, monthly budget and pre-buy accounts and customer

correspondence.

Service Departmcnt Mauagers Assistant 1998 — 2000

Assisted in supervising 9 LP/Oil technicians. Scheduled appointments and installations. Answer & resolve

incoming Service Dept telephone calls.

% Education
Hesser College, Manchester, NH
Associate Degree in Business Science, 1987
Continuing Education, Concord and Derry School Districts
Certificates of Completion - Microsoft Windows 98 and Excel

% Activities
Membership in Greater Concord Area Chambcr of Commerce, 2007 — 2008

& References - available upon-rcqucst _
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GRYTRRRINEAL ARSI
CERTIELD FUBLIG, ACCOUNTANTS-
'To the. Board of Diréctors | WOLFEBGRD » NORTH COMYAY.
.Community Action Program Beélknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. nov%%monn
‘Concord, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

‘Report onthe F!nancial Statements

We have audited the accompanymg consolidated financial statements of. Commumty Action,
Program Belknap-Mernmack Counties, 'Ihc. (a- nonprofit organization), which comprise the
consolidated; statements. of financial posttlon as of February 28, 2021 and’ February 29,2020,

and the related consolidated statements: of activities, functlonal éxpenses and cash: flows, -and’
notes 'to.the: consolrdated financial statements for the years then ended:-

Management's Responsibility for the.Financial Stateinents

Management is: responstble for* the: preparation-and fair presentation .of .these ‘éonsolidated
financial statements in ;accordance with accounting principles-generally accepted in the’ United
fStates of America xthIS includes the desrgn lmplementatlon and mamtenance of mternal

......

Auditors’ Responslb?lft_y

Our responsrbmty is.to” express an opinion on these: consolidated fi nancial statéments.based
on our. audits. 'We, -conducted our audits in accordance with audltmg standards generally
accepted in the Unlted ‘States:. of Amenca and-the standards apphcable to financial audits
contained it Govemment’Audmng Standards. issued by the Comptroller General of the United -
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to. obtaih reasofiable
assurance about whéther the consolidated financial statements are free from material
mlsstatement

Ari audit involves. pefforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about'the. amounts. and’
dlsclosures In-the. consolidated ﬂnanclal statements. The procedurés selectéd depend on the
audltors judgment mcludlng the asséssment of the risks of material mnsstatement of the.
consohdated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In makmg those risk
assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation: and' fair
presentatlon of the consolldated financial statements in order to design.audit. procedures that
aré .appropiiate- in the: clrcumstances but not for the pufpose of expressing an opmron on the
effectiveness of the: ent;ty s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An.audit
also includes: evaluatmg the appropnateness of accounting policies. used and the
reasonableness ‘of sugmﬁcant accounttng estimates made by management, as well as.
evaluatlng the. overall presentatlon of the consolidated financial statements.



‘We, bel!eve that.the audltrevgdence wé have obtained is sufficient and apprepnate to provlde a
basis: fof.our’ audrt opinion.-

» Opinion: .
in our. opinioh: the consolidated” financial statements .referred to -above present. fairly; in all
material. respects the ' ﬁnancral posmon of Community Action Program Belknap Merrimack'
Countres Inic..as of February 28, 2021, and the. changes in net assets and cash flows: for the
year,thenl ended i accordance with accounting principles. generally accepted m the Unlted
States: of Amenca

Other !nformatron

Our audit was Gonducted for the. purpose of forming an. op|n|on on the. consolrdated ﬂnanc|a|'
-statements -as a whole: The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal ‘awards, as
requrred by* Title 2 U.S: Codé; of Federal Regulatioris, (CFR) Rart -200; Uniforin Administrative
Requrrements Cost Prrncrp!es and Audrr Requrrements for Federal Awards rs presented for

_____

statements Such informatrcn Is the responsnblllty of management and was denved fromrand
relates directly ‘to the undedylng accounting and' -other records used to prepare the:
consolldated f nancial statements. Thé information “has been subjected to the audlting-
procedures applied |n the audlt cf the consolldated fi nancral statements and certain addltlonal,

vvvvvv

.accountmg and other records used to rprepare the. consohdated fmancral statements or'to the:
consolidated financial statements themselves and other additional: procedures anaccordance
with audrtmg standards generaily accepted in.the Unitéd States of Ameérica,, In’ ‘ouir, 0p|n|0n the
Informatlon |s falrly stated in allj matertal respécts, in relatron to-the consolldated i nancial .
statements as a-whole: :

. Other iportfnqueqmred by Go vernment Auditlng_Standards
'In accordanice with. Govériment ‘Auditing Sténdards,. we Fiave also issued “our: féport: dated -
.February 14, 2022 on-our consrderatron of Commumty Actlon Program Belknap Merrimack .
Countres.‘lnc s |nterna| .control over financial reportlng ‘and on our tests. of its’ compllance wlth‘
~certain prowsrons of Iaws regulatrons contracts, and grant:agreements and-other. mattérs. The.
purpcse of that report is'to. describe the. scope of our 'testing of internal’ controE over f” nancial
reporttng and compl:ance and the; results.of that testing,. and not-to provrde an: opinion on-
Jinternal control over financial reportlng .or on compliance, That report is an. |ntegrai part of. an
audit performed In'accordance with Government Auditing’ Standards in consrdenng Communlty
Action: Program Be[knap-Memmack Counties, inc.'s internal gontrol over: financial reporting.
‘and. complrance

Contord, New Hampshire
February 14; 2022
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'CURRENT ASSETS

&

Cash

CQNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION.

’FEBI_?UARY 28, 2021 AND' FEBRUARY 29, 2020

ASSETS,

i~ ASepunts-receivablé.

Inventory

"Prépaid expenses -

dlqveslmen'ts

Total current.asséts

PROPERTY" _
- Land, buildings and improvements
-Equipment, furniture and vehicles *

Conslrucuon in procass

Total b'ropériga}'

Less actumufated déprecidtion

'i5rdpen'y'; net

OTHER ASSETS
{Cash & Bscrow.and reserve funds
Tenant security: deposlts

Due frorn related party’

‘rata_r-o:het nssets ¢

TOTAL'ASSETS"

(LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES )
“Gurrént; porlion of riotes payable

Lina of credil

=Accounts payable-
.Atcrued expanses
Refundable- advances

Total current liabilitigs:

{LONG. TERM LIABILITIES

Paycheck Protection Program I6an’
Notes'payable; Iess current porl:on shown above
- Tenant sacurity’ deposits

Tolal liabilitiés

NET ASSETS

Wlthouf donar restrictions -
With donpr restrictions’

Total net gssets.

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Sea Notes to Consolldated Financlat Statements
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2028 202

$ 899766 $ 540,026
3,762,809 2,656,855
55,805 22,916
73,700 44,159,
127,996 110,078
4,990.175 3,283,034
7,148,518 5,644,770
16,117,020 5,652,539
18,126 —
13,381,662 117147,309"

- 7,639,290 ; .6_,695;42'8 -
5,642,472 4,601,861,
65,437 w
6,881 Lo

- 139,441‘
____72318: 139,441, -
'$ 10/634,865 ‘S .*7.924:358
$ 213444 § 201,245
380.028 - 550,000;
1,525,832~ *1;160,635
788,951 757,999
1,036,941, _1,0845 518
+3,945,196 . 13,754,395
1,935,300 ¥
939,697 814,253
6.881 =
16,827,074 4,568,648
2,758,959 2,992,894,
1,048,832 362814
3,807,791 3:355:708;

$ 10,634,865 . 7.024.356.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF. ACTIVITIES
"FOR. THE YEAR ENDED. FEBRUARY 28, 2021

'REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards
Rental income
-Other funds '
tInkirnid- .
United Way
Interest income
Reallzed gam on sale of equipmant

Tot_al-_revan.uejs anﬁd:gmer-suppcn-

‘NETASSETS RELEASED FROW
RESTRICTIONS" *

Total

IE)(PENSES
Salaries ‘and wages
Payroll.taxes and benefi ts.
Travel
Occupancy
Program services
Othercosts
|Depreczat|on
In—kln_d

[S

‘fotal ‘efcpe‘ns’es '

-.(;HANGE IN NET, ASSETS BEFORE iGAIN ON
INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHlP

GAIN ONNVESTMENT IN EIMITED PARTNERSHIP
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS:
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR,

'‘NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM LlMITED
PARTNERSH!P

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Withiout Dénor ‘With Donor
Restrictions.  Restrictions’ - Total
$, 20625325 $ . s 20 625,325
123,657 s 123,657
2,375,403. 3733,625: '6:108,928
490,035 - 490,035,
5,297 ; 5,297
383 : _383:
3,500 3 3,500-
23,623,600 3,733,525 27,357,125
3,047,507 (3,047,507). |
26.671,107, 686,018 97,357,125,
9,010,668 - 9,010, 668
2,538,067 . 12638.067
145,913 & 145,913
1,420,443 " 1,429,443
11,796,741 11,796,741
1,699,972 4,599,072
458,009 . 458,000
490,034 K g 490 034._
27,468,847 . :27;468;847
(797,740) 686,018: (141,722)
64,397 - 64,307
(733,343) '686,018 (47:325)
2,992,804 362,814 3,355,708.:
499,408 % 499,408
$ 2,758,959 § 1048832 '§. 3607781

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants

4‘.



{FOR THE-YEAR END

REVENUES AND QTHER SUPPORT
Grant awards
OIher funds
In- klnd '
.l—_.l_hhe_d Way :

Totdl.reventes and other support

i NET:ASSETS RELEASED FROM "
=RESTRICTIONS

rTéiai

EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes- and benefits.
Travel
Occupancy \
Program services
‘Other Costs
'Depreciation
An:Kind'

Totsl expensés
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS .
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

STATEMENT OF ACTWITIES

ED FEBRUARY 29, 2020
_ Without Donor With Donor
’ Restrictlons Restrtctions Total

3 18,276,247 $ - § 18,276,247
2,437,366 12,086,021 5,423,387

920,759 . 920,759

11,938 - 11,938

* 21,646,310 *2,986,021 24,632,331
3130622 __(3130622) -
24,776,932 (144.601) 24,632,331
9,213;867" - 9,213,867
2,508,455" - 2,508,455

'322,894. . ‘322,894

1, 393 046" s 1,393,046

- 9,231,697 - 9,231,697

1,634,451 n 1,634,451

‘401,166 = 401,166
920,759 - 920,759 .
25,626,335 : 25526335
(849,403) - (144,601) (994,004)
3,842,207 507,415 4,349,712

$ - 2992804 .§. 362814 § 3355708

See Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY. 28, 2021

Program Management Total:
Salaries.and wages, $ 8423286 $§ 587,382 '§- 9,010,668
"Payroll taxes “and banefits 2,308,280 229,777 2,538,067
“Travel . 145, 104- 809 "145,913
-Otcupanty. 1,293,121 138, 322 1,429, 443
Program Services:, ' 11,796,741 - 11,796, 741
Other costs:
Accounting fees: . - 80, 013 -80,013
Legal fees. 19,604 19,604
Supplies 165,804 -30; 710 196,514
Postage and shipping' 56,087 '8,986° 65,073
Equipment rentat and-maintenance 8,736 = 6,736
Printing and- pubhcations . 34,562 3,551 '38,113
: zConferences. conVentuons and meétings 632 Lk ..632
Interest - 39,595 -22,038 62,633
Insurance 123,704 27,528 - 151,232
Membership fees. . 10,040 7,019 17,059
Utility and mainténance’ 190,837 62,549 253,386
Cornputer gervices 47, 178 8,660, ,55,838°
Other 584,082 68, 257 .653.239
Deprecuatlon ' 458,000 458,000,
In-kind- 490,034 - 490 034
Total functional expensés 5 26,104,346 $ 1,274,501, '$- 27,468,847

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL. EXPENSES
FOR THE'YEAR ENDED! FEBRUARY 29, '2020

Program Managenient Total’
Saldries and wages: - $ 8797236 $ 416631 § 9,213,867
Payroll. taxes. and beriefits 2,468,991 39, 464‘ '2,508/455
Travel 322,870 24 322,894
Occuipancy 1,225,265 167,781 1,393,046
Program- Services : '9,231,697 s 9,231,697
‘Other costs: ) i .
.'Accountmg fees 475 60,771 61,246
- Legal fées : - 8,261 19,261
* Supplies’ 214,778 31,442 246,220
"Postage and shipping 19,055. 34,399 .53,454
Equipment rental. and maintenance 3,627 275 3,802
! Prinfing ang' publicatnons 27,109 6:562 33671
.Conferences convent;ons and meetings 27,248 4,662 R} 910
Interest 57,543 15,712 73,255
Insurance. 133 619 5,949 139, 568
*.Membership fees 12,862 7,586 20,448,
Utnlity and. malnlenance 170,336- 48114 218,450
Compitter services: 51,908 - 51,908
Otheér: ) 663,656 27,502 691 158 :
.Depreciation . 401,166 - 401,166
In-k_ind 920,759 - :920, 759
Total funictional éxpénses’ '§ 24,750,200 § 8781435 § . 25 626 :335

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS P
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28: 2021 AND FEBRUARY. 29 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In netassets:
Adjustments to reconctle change in net,assets.to
" net cash used,in operating:aclivities: .
'Deprecmhom
Interest on deferred fi nancmg costs
Realized: gain-on sale of equipment
{Gain on, Investmenl in Jimited' partnership
Decrease (mcrease) In current'assets:
AccoUnts recewable
Inventory
Prepald expenses
‘Déciéase’ (lncrease) in‘current liabilities:
Accounts; payablea
Accrued expenses
Refu_n_dable advarices

'NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIV'ITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from salé of property
Additlons to property
Inveslrnenls

NET GASH USED/IN INVESTING-ACTIVITIES-

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paycheck Protaction‘joan’ proceeds
Netrépaymerits-online of cred:l
Repayment'of Iong lerm debt

‘NET.CASH PROVIDED BY-FINANCING-ACTIVITIES

‘NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN:CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

:CASH-AND' R’E’sm‘lci'isp CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR®

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSHIP*

‘GASH AND-RESTRICTED'CASH BALANCE; END OF YEAR

2021 ~2020
(47,325) .5, .(604,004)
468,009 401;168
484 4
(3,500) =
(64,397) o
'(1,203,458) 1(235,814) .
(32,979) (118)
(18,723), 8,473
356,371 91,470
23,890 (308,749).
(47.575), 86,184
(579,203) . +(951,390),
3,500 R
(618,410 - (268,834)
7818 --n(1556)
(632,628) + (276,180)
1,935,300
.51‘59,972) 550, 000
(199,152) (185,156)°
1,566,178 384,844
354,145 (862,738)
549,028 1,414:762
82,032 -
965203  § 549,026

See Notes to Cpnseﬂdat'edfi_nani:ial Statements-
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<CDNSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONT'INUED)
FDR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28; 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29,2020

. 2021 2020
ZSUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMAT!ON
Cash pald duﬂnq the: yaar hr lmeres! 3 62533 '§ 73,255,
:SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONGASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES'
Transier of assets frum newly. consolidated lP R .
Accodnts’ receivable $ 24486 § -
* Prepaid expenses 10,827 -
'Property, net 980,089 =
‘Sacurity deposits 8132 -
i"oia'i transfer of assets from nawly consolidated LP $ 1001544 § -
Trnnsfar of Ilabllibes frdhfnewly ccnsolldated L _
- Accounts payable ‘ = ‘8825 § -
Acu'uﬂd expanses 7,002
Socu:ﬂy ‘deposils _ ‘8132 -
Nola poyablé+ 336,311 -
fl'ola_l ‘transfer.of llabiilties ffom newdy.consolidated LP _ § 380330 5. :
“Total treisfer of pirtners' capital from’ newly Gonsolidited LP' $ 48408 8. -
Partnership capltal previousty recorded as Investment in'relaled parlles- : 203,638 -
Total transfer of parinefs"canital ffom nevy conselidated LR §__703246 §-

Sed Notes to Conéolidated Financlal Statements.



1.

'NOTES.TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
FOR.THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY.29 2020

a.ORG'“ANfZArloN—ANp SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Orgamzation

Communlty. Action Program’ Belknap ‘Merfimack Counties, inc: "(the- Orgamzatlon) is a

New. Hampshlre nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, Ilvmg and support

neads of the Iow,mcome ‘and eldery clients in the two county: sarvice: areas, ds well.as

state w1de These services are provided ‘with the *fi nancial.support of vanous federal‘
: state county and local organlzatlons

Principles of Consolidation

The ¢onsolidated, fi nancual statements ‘include the -accounts. of Community ‘Action’
Program of Belknap—Memmack Counties, Inc.,-and the foIIowmg entittes as Communlty
Action. Program of Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc. has both an. economlc mterest and
Jcontrol of the entmes through a majonty vot:ng mterest in thelr govemmg board AH

consohdated fi nancual statements

Sandy Ledge Ltmated Partnérship_
5 CAP.BMC. Development Corporation

Basis of Accoiiriting
The:accompanying . consolidated financial statements have -been prépared’.on ‘the
acénaal basis - of accounting in accordance with the- accountlng principles generally

.‘accepted in the Umted State of America.

Baslis of Presentation

AThe "consolidated ‘financial statements of the Organlzatlonw have been prepared |n
-accordance with; U.S. generally accepted’ -accounting principles, which . require the
Organlzatton td- report .information regarding its financial . position and. activities
accordmg to the'following net asset classifications:

Net assets: without. donor -restrictions include net-assets that are’ not
.subject to, any-denorimposed restrictions and may be expended for any:
,-purpose In performing the primary objectives of the Organlzatlon These
-net assets may ‘be 'used at the discretion of the Organlzatlon s
management and board of dlrectors

Net_assets with donor restrictions mclude net assets subject to.
.stiputanons Imposed by donors and grantors.. Some donor restrictions .are
temporary in nature’ those restrictions will ‘be ‘met by actions: of the'
Organlzatlon or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are: perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has.stipulated the funds be mamtalned In

:perpetiity.-
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.NOTES. TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS .
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021: AND FEBRUARY 29 2_020

¢ DoRof restricted ‘confributions’ are réportéd -as rncreases in- net_assets’ with: donor‘

restrictions:, ‘When restrlctlons expire, net assets are reclassuf ed from net. assets with:
doner restnctlons to net assets without donor restnctlons in‘the consolrdated statements
_ .of actlwtles

The* Organlzatlon had .net assets with donor restrictions of $1,048, 832 and $362 814 at
February:28, 2021 and- February 29, :2020, respectlvely See Note 13.

Inéomeé. Taxes

Commiunity Action. 'Program of Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc: is organized ‘as a
nonprof t: corporatlon and is _exempt from federal income taxes undér intemal iRevienue
"Code. Section 501(c)(3) The internal Revenue ‘Service, has deterrnmed them to be
othenthan a private foundation.

The Organlzation files information returris in the United . States and, thetState of New
: Hampshlre Thé Organlzatton 15 - subject to examinations " by tax authonttes for ;three
-years:
‘CAP BMC Devetopment Corporation is taxed as a "“C" Corporation- under the Internal
‘Revenue Code The Corporation accounts for deferred income taxes.'underthe: asset
and Ilablllty Imethod in ‘accordance with Accounting Standards Codrﬁcatton No 740
(ASC*T40) "Accountmg for Incortte Taxes'. The objective of this: method isto: establlsh
deferred ‘tax- assets .and liabilities for. temporary dlfferences between, the: fi nancral
: reportlngj baS|s end the’ tax ‘basis of the Company's assets and liabilities at the enacted
‘tax“rate; expected to, bé in effect when such amounts are reallzed Of, settted aASC 740

also: requtred deferred tax assets and liabilities to be shown separately There areno,

deferred’, ‘tax’ assets: or Ilabltlties The Corporation has no federal net. operatlng loss. -

canyforwards avatlable at' February 28,2021 and 2020

SandyLedge: Limited: is taxed as a partnérship. Federal income taxes are, riot payabte
‘or prowded by the partnershlp Earnnngs and losses are included i the partners federal
_Income tax retUms ‘based 'on their .share of partnerst'up earnings.. Partnershlps are
reqmred to file income tax rétumns with the State of ‘New Hampshiré and pay an mcome
tax at the state S statutory rate.

-Accounttng Standard ‘Codification. No. 740 (ASC 740), Accoum‘mg for Income .Taxes,
establrshed the. minimum threshold for recognizing, and’ a system for measuring, the
benef ts.of tax. return posmons in consolidated financial statéments. The: Orgamzatlon
has analyzed its tax posmon taken on its income tax returns for the: past threewyears

and 'has concluded, that no -additional provision fer income taxes is necéssary in the

.Orgenlzatlon s-consolidated financial statements.
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'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2020

Proge_r_ty

at the date of the donatlon Assets purchased with ‘a usefui |IfG in excess of’ one year
and exceeding $5, 000 are. capltallzed unless a lower threshold is requnred by certam‘
fundlng sources. Deprecratlon is computed on the straight-line: basis over the estimated .
useful lives of the-related ‘assets as follows::

Bunldlngs and lmprovemenls 40 years
Equipment furnituré and vehicies 3 7 years

_Use. of Estimates

The. preparation of consotldated financial statements in conformity wrth Umted States
generaliy accepted accountlng pnnmples requ:res management to make estimates andr

.....

.and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dUnng the reporttng penod .
--Actual results could dlfier from those: estimates

‘Cash-and'Cash: Equivalents
‘For'purposes of the consolidated statements of cash: fiows, the Organizat:on considers

all. hquld investments purchased ‘with ongmal matunties of three months-or léss to be

.cash. equ:valents

The; Organlzation maintains its cash in bank. -deposit accounts,. which at.times. may
exceéd federdlly insured. Irmlts The . Organrzatnon has' not expenenced any: losses in -

such accounts; and belleves Itis Aot exposed to any signifi cant risk.with respect to these
accounts..

The followmg table provides a reconciliation of-.cash and. restricted ‘cash: reported ‘within
the statements “of financial position that sum to the total in the statéments of cash flows

as.of yedrend:

2021 . 12020
Cash, operations $ 809,766  $ 549,026
Cash escrow and reserve funds 65,437 | <
Total cash and restricted cash. $_965:203 7§"__§gg_ ,026

‘Contributed Services

Donated 'services ‘are recognized as contributions in ‘accordance. with FASB ASC No.
958, Accourting-for Contributions Réceived and Contributions Mads, if the services (a);
creéate or enhance. non-financial assets or (b) require specnatlzed skills, and would‘
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers* provnded various services throughout theé year that are- riot récognized- as

contributions.in the. consohdated financial statemerits'Since the recognition critena under-
FASB ASC.No.-958 were not met. '
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‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28 ‘2021 AND FEBRUARY 29 2020

In-Kind Donations /. Noncash Transactlons

Donated facrl(tres services and -supplies are reflected as-.revenue-and expense ‘in the
accompanylng consohdated financial statemeénts, if.the criteria for. recognmon is meat.

This. represents.the estlmated Tair. value for the service, supplles and. space‘that the
Orgariization might incur under normal; operatlng activities. THe Organizatlon feceived .
$490,035 and $920,759 in donated. facilities, services and suppliés for the years-ended
February 28; 2021 and February 29, 2020; respectivély, as foliows: ‘

The: Organrzatlon receives. contributed professional services. that .are required to. ‘be-
'_recorded in“dccordance with FASB ASC. No. 958. The estimated fair.valtie“of these:
services.was determlned to be:$18,937 and $52,181 for the years ended Febmary 28,
2021 and February 28, 2020, respectively. ,

The’ Orgamzatlon also receives contributed food commiodities and 6ther goods that are-
‘required-to: be recarded’.in accordance with FASB;ASC No. '958.. The estimated. fair’
value of these. food commodltles and goods was “determined "to.'be. $471,098".and-
$868 578.for the years ended February 28, 2021 and February 29 2020 respechvely

Advertlsmg
The. Organrzatron expenses advertlsmg costs as they are Incurred Total advertlsmg

-Costs for- the-} years. ended Fébriary 28, 2021 and February 29 2020 {otaled $14 287
.and-$46,899; respectively

'lnventog
Invéntory Consists.of weatherlzatlon supplies and work in process. and.is valued -at the

Iower of cost or net reallzable value -using the first-in; fi rst-out method

New Accounting' Proncunéément:

I May.'2014,. the' Financial” Accountlng ‘Standards: Board (FASB), issted Accountlng
.Standards: Update (ASU) No.: 2014-09,.Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Toprc
-606) The ASU and - all subsequently issued clanfylng ASUs replaced most; exlstlng
revenue recognitlon gwdance in US; GAAP. The ASU also requnres expanded
-dlsclosures relating to the- ‘nature, amount tlmmg, and uncertamty of ravenue -arid cash:
flows: ansmg from contracts with customers. The Organlzatlon adopted the new
-staridard. éffective’ March Ay 2020 the first day of the Organlzatlon sfi scal year Gsing the-
.modified retrospectlve approach The ' adoption did not result in -a change ‘to- the
acoountmg for the appllcable revenue streams; as such, no cumulative effect
.adjustment was recorded

Revenue Recognition:

Amounts “received from .conditional grants and.contracts for specrﬂc ‘purposes- are
generally recognlzed as income_ to the extent that related: expenses and condrtlons are
incurréd - or met Condmonal grants' received- prtor to the conditions being met are
reported as refundable advances. Contributions-of cash and other’ assets are. reported‘
as wuth donar restncttons if they are received with donor imposed stlpulatlons that.limit
the. use of the, donated .assets: However; if a restriction is-fulfi lied in the, ‘same period:in
'whlch the contribution jsreceived, the Organlzatron reports the support as without danor:
restncttons
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2.

.NOTES: TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL- STATEMENTS
,FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 20; 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2020.

Program Service Revenue
*Program:service revenue is.recognized as revenue when {he serwces are performed

‘Rental ‘Reventie

“Thé Organlzatton derives révenues from thé rental of apartment unifs. Revenues are
recogmzed as income; ‘monthly, when renits become- due, -and: ~control of the
-apartment: units is transferred to the lessees. The mdnwdual teases are for a term of
one'year and are cancelable by the tenants, Control of the léased. units is- transferred
to.the lessee if an: amounttthat reﬂects the COHSIdeI'alIOI'I the Partnershrp expects e
,be: entitled to: m~exchange for the leased .units. The cost, incurréd to obtaln the lease
will.bé expensed as tncurred

Performance Obligatiohs and.Coritract Assets and Liabilities -

The performance obligattons related. to the leasé contracts and program servlces are:
lsatlsﬁed ata pointiin’time. Revenue. from performance obtlgatrons satlsﬁed ata. point.
ln tlrne consist of monthty rental payments and fees for program serwces Contract

year ended February 28 2021 were $911. There were no contract assets ior
JJiabilitigs for the year ended Februdry 29, 2020,

4

";Functional Allocation: of~Expenses

The.costs.of providing the vafious programs and other activitigs have- been presented ine .

. the Consolldated Statements .of. Functronal Expenses Accordlngly, certain costs have

been allocated among the’ ‘program  services and supportlng actwutles benéfited. .
Expenses are’, changed to» each program based on. the-direct. expenses mcurred yor
esttmated usage ‘based-an time, spent on each program by staff.

_Exgense _ _ Method of allocation
‘Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation Actual assets used by program
-All-other-expensés. Direct assignment
iLIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets. as of February 28 2021
and.Febridary 29, 2020:

L 2021 2020

Financial assets at year end: - C
‘Cashand cash-equivalents, undesignated- $ 8897660 & 549,026
Accounts receivable 3,762,809 2,656,855
InVestments 127, 996 110,078
"Cdsh estrow and réserves ' 65,437 _ -
Total financial assets __4,846008 _ 3215958
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‘ 'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND. FEBRUARY 29, 2020.

L'ess amounts not avallable to be used within oné year:

Net. assets with donor restnctlons 1 048 832 ‘36(2,;81 4
Reserve funds '60,212. .
‘Amounts not available within one year 4 09_,04{1' 7;362‘7_81‘4

Financial.assets avarlable to-meet general

expendltures over. the. next twelve months : $ 3736064 §. g_ '-ﬁgg' 45

’It Is the: Organlzatrons goal to malnlaln financial assets to meet 60 days of operattng.
expenses which approx:mates $4,360,000 and $3,995,000, respectrvely. at February 28;
2021 ‘and ‘February 29, 2020 The Organization has a“line of .credit with, $219 972 -and

~$50 000 available:to borrow on, at February 28, 2021 and February 29, 2020 :

respectlvely

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE -
Accounts recelvable are stated at. the amount management expects ' to collect. from

: balances outstandlng at year end, Balances that are sl outstandlng after. management‘

has used‘reasonable collectron eflorts are. wntten off through a charge to the valuatlon
allowance and-a credit to accounts receivable. The allowarice for. uncollecllble accounts

was: estlmated to° be:zero at* February 28, 2021 and February '29; - 2020. The

Organlzatron has no pollcy for chargmg mterest on overdue accounts; -

REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants -received in ‘advancedre. recorded as refundable advances and recognized as’
revenus in the period in“which the’ related services or expendltures are. performed or
incurred.  Funds recéived in advance of grantor conditions. belng met. aggregatedu
$1; 036 941 and $1, 084 516 '@s 6f February 28, 2021 .and February 129, -2020;
respectlvely

RETIREMENT. PLAN ’

Tha Orgamzatron :has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantlally all
eémployees:. The -cost of the plan- is charged to” programs administered by the
Organrzatlon The -expense-of the plan for the year ended’ February 28,,2021 and.
February 29; 2020 totaled $193,103 and $181,057, respectlvely

LEASED FACILITIES

'Facilities: occupled by the Organization for'its communrty servrce programs’ are leased
under-various operatmg Ieases The lease term§ range from month to month to: twenty
years For the year: ended February 28, 2021 and February 29; 2020, the. annual lease.
‘expense for the leased facilities was $542,317 and $546,861, respectively.
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. . __'NOTES To EONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29,2020

.The:approximate future, rriiriirhu_m leasé paymenits on the above leases are as follows: -

Year Ended :

Februa 28'_ Amount.
2022 $. 472,703
2023 445,235.
2024' 411,834
2025 ‘ :245,038
2026 - 88,762

"Thereafter _ 776,979
Total ' §:_2.440.551

ACCRUED. EARNED TIME

Tha Orgamzatuon has ‘acerued a liability for future annual leave time that |ts employees
have' eamed: and vested with the efmployees.in the amount-of $415, 580 and $341..532 at.
Februa'ry 28, 2021 and February 29; 2020 respectively:

BANK'I.’I'NE‘LOFiC?REDIT'_ o - ) _

The ‘Organization has .a.$200,000 revolving line. of, credit agreement <(the: line) ‘with_a
.bank thatis dué ori demand. The line calls for monthly variablé interest.payments based
-on; the wall: Street Journal Prime Rate (4. 75%. at. February 28, 2021 and February 29,
2020) plus 1%, but not. less than- 6% per annum. The line is secured: by alk the
iC)rgamzatlcm s.assets. There'was no balance outstandmg at February 28 2021 There.
wasa, ‘balance of $200 000 outstandung at February ‘29, 2020:

Dunng thé yéar endéd. February 29, 2020 the Organrzatlon entered- mto .an-additional
revolvmg hne of crednt agreement (the Ime) in the amount of $400 000 wrth a bank that
LIBOR rate (2 62% and 4 02% at February 28 2021 and February 29“ 2020 4
-respectnve!y) The liné s ‘sécured by all the Organization’s assets. There was:a balance
of $380,028 -and- $350,000 outstanding at February 28, 2021 and February 29,.2020,,
respectlvety

CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For -the, years..éndéd ;Fébruary 28, 2021 and February 29, 2020, approximately
$11 400 000" (42%) and' $12,100,000 (49%), respectlvely, of the Orgamzations total
revenue was. received from the Department of Health and Human Serwces The:future
scalé and nature. of the Orgamzatlon is dependerit upon contmued support from this

-department
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. : lNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR'THE- YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2020

40. 1 LONG TERM.DEBT
Long term debt consusted of; the followung as-of February 28,.2021 and February 29

..2020:

550% note payable to .a financial “institution in-
monthly instalimeénts. of - $1 634 through- July 2039
The note |s secured by property of the Orgamzatlon $

'5 75% note ,payable to a - financial institutior: ln

) monthly installménts. - for pnncnpal and' interest of

‘$13 812 through July 2023." The note.is secured by
‘property of the Organlzatlon for Lakes’ Reglon Family*
.'Center

' 300% note - payable- to the City of Concord for-
: leesehold wnprovements in monthly mstallments for

'pnncrpal "and. interést ol $747 through May 2027 The
note: IS secured by property of the Organlzatlon for the-
agency admlnlstratlve Building. renovations.

7—00% note payabletto 8 bank: in. monthly installments
for. pnncnpal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023..

“The note .i§ secured by a first real .estate mortgage

‘mortgage’ onreal estate. -

’and assugnment of rents and..leasés on property’
=Iocated in ConGord, New Hampshlre for Early Head
"Start

Non:interest béatng note payable by Sandy Ledge to:
jNew Hampshlre Housmg deférred until June 1, 2034

or untll the- project is.'sold or -refinanced or. surplus
cash is avallable The note s collaterahzed by a

2021

‘225,459,

375,827

50,507

164:553

343,081

©.2020

§ 282259

520,492

57,848

204,899 -

Total Iong~term debt’ before unamorized daferred -
t"nancmg cost

Unamortized deferred financing costs (6:286)

Less.amounts due. within one year

1,159,427

1,153441
213,444

7,015,498

1,015,498
201,245

Long’term pottion § 030697 §. 814 253
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘FOR THE YEARS ENDED ) FEBRUARY. 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2020'

4Year Endmg
Februa[y 28

2022
2023.
2024
2025
2026
Thereaﬂer

b

'PROPERTY. AND EQUIPMENT

Amount:

$ 213,444

226,567

146,511.
16,749 .
17,517

532353

sThe'scheduled maturities of I5ng-term debt as of FéBruary-28, 2021 wereras:llows:-

Property and: eqmpment consisted -of the followmg as. of February 28, 2021 and

;Febrdary 29 2020

‘Land;

Building. and nnprovaments
Equilpment: and vehlcles
:Constructlon In:process.

‘Less dccumiilated depreciation’

=P?operty and e'c'mip'me‘ni net.
'totaled $458 009 ‘and $401 166, respectlvely

CONTINGENCIES

2021 :2020!
‘$ 279,340, § 168,676
6,867,176 . 5,376,094
6,117,020  5652,539.,
18,126, * -
13,281,662 11,187,300 -
7,639,200 . 6,695,428 .

‘.Deprecnatlon expense for the ‘years ‘ended’ ‘February 28, 2021 and. February 29, 2020

The: Organlzatlon recelves grant, fundlng from vanous sources. Underthie tefms: of these’
.~agreements the Orgamzahon is required to.use the funds within a’ ‘certain penod and for
purposes spacified by thé governing' laws and regulations. If expendllures were: found
not'ta.- have been made i compliance with ‘the laws and regulation's,"the Organization.
mighti-be . requrred to, répay the funds. No provisions havé béeén made for thig
contlngency because specific ‘amounts, if any, have not. been: determmed or. assessed

as of February 28,2021
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14.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS:
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29,:2020

......

AINET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net “assets. with .donor’ restrictioris . are. avaIIable for the following specifc program

services-as of February 28; 2021. and February. 29, 2020:

INH: Food: Pantry Coalition
Senror Center

Eider Services
-Mary Gale.

NH Rotary. Food Challenge
Summer: ‘Feeding
.Common Paritry

Caﬁng Fund

Agency FAF’

Agency Head Start'
Agency FPIPN
Community Crisis

Other: ProgramSn

TOt_‘_el inet assets with-donor resirictions.

=8 RELATED ‘PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2021 2020
$ 663 $ . 663,
142817 141,114
499,201 2,867
- 24,082
5,058 15,068
'60,433 18,840
5,512 4,764.
8,791 9,064
2,604 ~4,751
224,847 145,747
‘87,387 -
350 2550
11169 - _3,304

The Qrganization.serves as the mahagement agent for the following organlzations

*.Related.i’art\'l

Belmont Elderiy Housing, inc:

Epsom Eldeny Housmg, Inc.

Alton Housmg for thié Elderly, inc..
Pembroke Housmg for the Elderly, Inc.
Newbury Elderly Housing,: Inc.
Kearsarge Elderly Housmg IRc.
Rwersnde Housmg Corporat:on

'Twm Rwers Communlty Cofporation
OzanariPlace, Inc:

TRCEC Housing Limited Raftnership |

(Fu_nft:‘tion

HUD Property.
HUD. Propgrty
HUD Property-
HUD-Propérty
HUD Property

.HUD Property-

HUD Property

'Property Deveéloprnent

Transmonal Supportlve
Services: )
Low: Income Housing Tax *

Credit Property’

The ‘services ‘performed. by the Organization included, marketing, accountlng.‘tenant
selectlon ‘(for the HUD. properties), HUD compliance (for the 'HUD: ‘properties), and

‘maintenance of property.
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6.

~ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2021 AND FEBRUARY. 29, 2020

The total amount due from“the: related parties {collectively): at February 28 2021 and:

’February 29,) 2020 was $181, 384 and $198,763, respectrvely. and is. iricluded "in
taccounts receivables.

RECLASSIFICATION
.Certain ‘amounts and’ accounts. from the prior year financial statements have theen.
reclassrf ed to enhance the. comparabllity with the presentation of the current year.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money-

.relatlng to. its Frx it programin. cértain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds

tataled $126 996 and $109 078 “at February 28, 2021 &nd February 29 2020~

respectively:

.ASC Topic No: 825- 10 ‘Financial Instruments, provides .a définition of fair value whtch-
‘focusgs’on an ‘@xit price, rather than -an entry price, establishes & framework in, generally
.acr_:epted accountlng principles for measuring ‘fair value’ whrch emphasu:es that-fair-value is
'@ market-based méasurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires.

expanded dlsclosures about fair value measurements in accordance wrth FASB ASC 820;
the- Orgamzatlon may use valuatron techmques consistent 'with- market income 'and cest

.approaches o measure fair- value. ‘As a basis for. censrdenng market partlcrpant_'
' ‘assumptlons in fair-valiie measurements, FASBE ASC 820 establishes a 'fair vallie
;hlerarchy. «whtch pnontizes,the mputs used in measuring fair values. The' hlerarchy grves-

the hlghest pnonty to Level 1 measurements and the lowest pnonty "fo ‘LeveL 3,

méasurements. The thrée \levels: of the fair-value hierarchy undér FASB.ASC. 820 afe
: .descnbed as, follows

Level1 - lnputs to the valuation methadology are guoted prices avajlabté in
activé markets for ldentzcal investrients. as of the repertrng date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the:valuation methodology are other than -quoted market '
prices in-active markets, which are either directly or’ mdurectly observable as
of the reporting date,.and fair value can, be determined through thé.use. of‘
-models or.other valuatlon methodologues

Level 3 - inputs to the ‘valuation methedology are unobservable mputs in
.srtuatrons where there is little or no market activity for the asset of liabiiity.
and the reporttng entity makes estimates and assumptions’ related to the
pncmg of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28, 2021 and: February 29, 2020, the Organization's investments were-
classrﬁed as Level. 1 and were baséed on fair value. .
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_ NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS' ]
‘FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28,2021 AND FEBRUARY 29 2020

Fair'Value 'lﬁeasu‘rements using Significant Observable Inputs:(Level 1) -

021 '20"20
Beginning balance — mutual funds $§ 109,078 $ 101,522
Total gains:— mutual funids ____ 17,018 _ 7,556
Ending:balance - mutual funds $_ 126996  $.__-100078

The; arrying- amount of :cash, currént ‘assets, other .assets and: current Iiabilmes
approxlmates falr value because of the short maturity of those lnstruments

The Orgamzation also has $1,000 invested in a Partnership, The ‘Lakes. Reglon'
Partnershlp for Public Health .at February 28; 2021 and February 29, 2020 |

IFISCAL AGENT:
Community Action- Program Belknap-Merrimack. Count:es Inc.-acts as’the fiscal agent
for- the*fellowmg comriinity. ‘organizations: Franklin: rCemmumty Serwces Bqulng '

“(Franklln) the Common ‘Pantry, (Laconla), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NHFood

Pantry Coalmon the.NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGPISCP Assotiation Reg:on 1.,
The Agency prowdes the managément and - oversight of the revenues. recewed"
;'(donattons) and the expenses (utnlmes food and emergency servlces)

PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
In April '2020; the Organization receivéd loan proceéds in. the amount of $1 935,300,

.under the Paycheck Protectlon Program (“PPP") The PPP is estabhshed as part of the

.Coronawms Aid, ‘Relief: and Economic ‘Security Act( CARES Act")..

‘If the Orgamzahon'does not meét the loan criteria, the unforglven portlon of the 'PPP'

N CETTS payable over. five years at an intérest raté of 1%, with ‘a deferral of payments. for:

the first ten months

'OTHER MATTERS

The impact of the. novel coronavirus (COV{D 18) and measures to prevent its spread
are -affecting: the. Orgamzatlons business. The significance of the impact of these
disruptions, lncludmg the -extent of their adverse impact on the Orgamzatlon s financial

.and operational results will: be. dictated by the length of time .that such disruptions.

continue and, in'turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration. of the. COVID—19

;pandemic and the impact of’ govemmental regulations that right be lmpossd in
‘response to the pandemlc
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL- STATEMENTS .
FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2021 AND FEBRUARY 29, 2020

TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST

During_ the - year ended February .28, 2021, Communlty Action Program of . Belknap-
Mernmack Counties; Inc. acquired .a partnershrp interest in a tow-mcome housing-
hmited partnershtp. Sandy Ledge.

The followmgals a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnership at the date of
acqutsitron

‘Daté of-Transfér ' :03/01/2020
Cash $ 3.793.
Cash reserves 58,239
Accouints recervab!e 2, 496
Prepaid: expenses 10, 827
Property; niet: 980,089
(Other assets- 8,132

‘Total assets - §.1.063.576
‘Note payable 3. 336",;3;1-1

Other Ilabllittes

— 24019

Total liabilities 360,330
Partnérs’ capital 703,246
'feta_l 'tiab_[li_tie.s and -Partners’ o
Capital.consolidated $_.1.063.576
"SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

-Subsequent ‘events--are events or transactions that -occur after the- consolldated
statement of fi nancral posutron date, ‘but before the conso!rdated t‘nancral statements are
available to be ‘issued. Recognized ;subsequent events aré events ‘or transactions that.
provide addrt:onal .evidence about conditions that existed at the consolidated. statement‘
of fi nancua| positlon date, including the. estlmates mherent in the: process of prepanng-
-consohdated ﬁnanctal statements. Non-recognized subsequent events are events that,
provrde evidence ‘about .conditions’ that did not ‘exist at the consolidated statement of
financial pOSttIOD date, but arose after that date. Management has evaliated
subsequent events through February 14; 2022, the date the consolidated financial
.statements were.available to be. tssued
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
}FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 2812021 AND¢FEBRUARY 29, 2020

-----

$1 615 427. The remainlng $312 873 has been converted to~a Ioan due in 44 monthly
payments of prlncnpal and |nterest at arate of 1%: The loan will. mature Hin Apnl 2025.
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SCHEDULE OF EIPEND!TURES OF FEDERAI. AWARDS

Y
FROGRAM TITLE.

HEAD BTART CLUSTER i
Hoexd Start -

Low income Homa Enargy Agsistance Progrsn
CV-Low Income Home Energy Assistancs Program

Comrenity Services Block Grant
CV-Conmunty Sarvices Biock Grant

Socisl Services Binck Grant-Homa Delverad 8 Congrognie Moets
‘Socks Sorvices Block Griei-Servios Link

Tompornry Assistance ki Noady Femives-Famdy Planning
Temoorary Assistance fof Heedy Familes-Yorkpiace Success

AGING CLUSTER
Tt (1), Pan B-Senior Trarsponstion
T 1), Port C-Congregeta Moaks
xpﬂl. Port C-Homa Dottvessd hegis

CHILD CARE AND DEVELOPMENT FUND G.LISTER

Chid Cara & Davelopmant Block
mdmummsmmrmumcw

MED!CAID CLUSTER
Modcal Assisiance Progrem
Modkcal Asshitaa Progracn - Viderans

Family Praning - Services
Pubiic Henlth Emengancy Rasponse:

Cooperathe Agreemen| for Emergoncy Responsa: Pubic Heshh
Mztomal. infant, 8 Eady Chikthond Home Visiting Program
National Famdy Coregver Support, Tt I, Part E-Sarvice Link
Special Prograrm for Aging, Title fv-Sarvice Link
Binhl-mmumg:_a»\nilmﬁmn

U3 DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE'
Spocial Suppk: Nutrition Program for Waomen, inforta 8 Childrn

CHR.O NUTRITION QLUSTER
Summer Food Servica Program Far Chigdren

Aisistance Listing,
o

23e00
83.600.

93,509
03568
13,568,

93569
93,569

3T
£3.667

93658
3,558

93.044
£3.045
03,045
3653

23.575
13,598

93.778
23,778

23217

3,354
13.870

83.048
83224
B30T

10.557
10.576
10.558

Jo.ssa

See Motes to 3chadule &f Expenditures of Federal Awards

“

P

. State of New Hacythire

SMNNWW-
Stio of Mow Hompshire:
B8 of New Hampshire:

-sm.dmw.

Sials of Newr Hamwshirg.

Steee of Mow Hamprshirg
Sizte of New Hampshire

State of ew HampsFire

Bouther New Hampshim Gervices

Sizte of Haw Hampshwe
Siate of New Hampshire
Sizte of New Hampehice
Stato of Mow Hampehire

izt of Hew Hampahine
Stote of Menw Hapghirs

Stois of New Hampshim
Gutwarys Community Sacvices

Stote of New Hampshire

Siate of New Hampahirg:
State of Néw Hampshioe |
Siate of New Hampshire
Stata of New Hampshire-

State of New Mampshire -

Stote of New Hamoshire

State of New Hompahire

State of New Hampshire:

Stota of New Hamgshire

Shﬁdﬂmw-

JDENTIFYING NUMBER

01CHZD52-05-01. 8 DICHN1357

HOME PROWIDED
TATAL

01.02-02-0247010-77050000

'01-02-02-0247010-7?05(!!9

m-crz-uz-aznom—mm

TOTAL
05-095-045-450010-7148.

05.-085-045-450010-7148
TOTAL

05-55-48-481010-0255
545500387

TOTAL,

05-95-45-450010-6148

05-85-45-4500 10-8 4270000
CLUSTER TOTAL

05-05-48-481010-7672
05-05-48-481010.7672
05-85-48-481010-7872

OSEATT

CLUSTER TOTAL

NONE PROVIDED
HONE PROVIDED

CLUSTER TOTAL

102500731

CLUSTER TOTAL

05-95 60-002010-5530
UBZPS003SSS
05-95-042-421010-29580000
102-50073%

10250073

102-500T31
102-500731 !

HHS TOTAL

1BANHTO3W 1000,
05:85-60-802010-52600000
NONE PROVIDED

NONE PROVIDED

FEDERAL .

PASSED THROUGH

5 . 380
000
4,645,620

3,767.213

82,805

182700

. 412,812

474,958
12

50?.856

414,145
88,127

482272

82,090
a2.977
135076

€3,101

2481
wenz
5110
13.705
14,788
5367,

u 11,404 978

L T 841527
a1.0m

90,790 |

143617



FOSTER GRANDPARENTS/SENIOR COMPANION CLUSTER
Senipr Camannion Proprem

S DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Fomula Grants 10 Rut Argas-Congord Transh

“TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER
Enhmmnrdm&lnd WWT
Enb d Mobiflty of Sertiors & Ind. W/DE s Furad T pOCtatic
Entanced Mobdity of Saniors & Ind, W/Disabiites-Rursd Transportation
Enhanced Mobitity of Seriors & Ind. WiDmebilies-Voluntser Drivers

Emergency Soludons Granl
CV-Ememgoncy Soltons Granl

Contimusm of Care Program
Continuum of Care Program

U$ DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Waestherization Assistance for Low income Pacsons
U3 DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Senlor Co ity Sarvico Employ Program:
WIAWIOA CLUSTER

WIAWIOA - Adult Progroen
WIAWIOA - Distocaied Worker Formula Grants

Cormnavirus Reftel Fund
Coronavirus Relal Fund

. Assistance Listng

'!ﬂﬂﬁgﬂ
10585
10.568
10,558

10,5659
10,580

10178 -

e 94,016

20.509

70513
20513
513
20513

14m
14231

= 12.267
14.267

81,042

12,138

17.258
17.278

21.019
#1.019

See Notes (o the Schedule of Expsnditures of Faderal Awards .

State of Mew Hampeters
Stats of New Hampshire
Stete of New Hampehie
Sizts of Now | mpshice
State of New Harpshie

Suxto of Now Hampshire

State of New Hampstirs-Cep

Swate of New Hempshirg-Dapanment ol Transportation’
Siate of New Hampahire-Oepartmant of Traseponation

Easter Seats
Merrimack County

Stato of New Hampshice
State of New Hampshire

Stbta of New Hamgahire

State of New Hampshire

Sio of New Hampshice

State of Hew Hampafire

Southam Naw Hampshira

shirs Barvices
Solthern Hew Hamgshina Services

'Stata of Néw Hampehire +

Stata of New Hsnpdiml

of Tran:

Continued

FEDERAL PASSED THROUGH,
05-615-00-002010-52600000 3 yzm s 803,224
81750000 408 o7 83,363
81750000 L
81750000 ‘,zee.:m 1265,303
8iTS0000 1,000,215 1000215
CLUSTER TOTAL 4,282,254
NONE PROVIDED 2,025,013 1,823,324
USDA TOTAL 3. 7210320, § 5,778,500
1BSCANHOOY $ 30208
CNCa TOTAL 3 309,708
| MH-18-X048 3- 689,104
NH-18-X043 <6189
HH-18-X043 57,501
W:2019-27-00 8,661
NH-65-X001 ~ 115 587
CLUSTER TOTAL 192.978
DOT TOTAL 5 o2 012
05-05-42-423010-7827 H 175,488
05-85-42-423010-7927 23015
TOTAL 198,563
05-95-42-423010- 7927- 102-500731 197,995
05-9542423010-7927- 102600731 _____ BAM2)
TOTAL 282,356
HUD.TOTAL [ 480,019
m-oem-mom—mm $ 219,618
DOE TOTAL i 219,918
103-22-22. 2305101453000 $ 438470
£510-51380000-102-500731 55817
+0510-53360000-102-500731 17,402
GLUSTER TOTAL 3000
- -
DOL TOTAL $ 511,479
$5-2021-BHS-DR-HOUSH2 s 2212383
Vatarans 38.008
US TREASURY TOTAL $ 2230389
TOTAL 3 7325 5,278,509



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Indepéndeént Auditors! Report)-



NOTE 1

'NOTE-2,

NOTE 3;

‘NOTE-4

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF-EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS'
" IEOR'THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2021

‘BASIS.OF PRESENTATION.

The -atconpanying.-schedule. of -expenditures of ‘Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes’. the federal award -activity of Community .Action Program Belknap~

fMerﬁmack Countues Inc _under programs of the federal government for the year

......

Part 200, Unrform Admrnrstratrve Requrrements, Cost Prmcrples and Audft'
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because. the ’Schedule
presents: only a selected portlon of the operations of Commumty Actron Programr
Belknap-Mernmack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does 'not: present the»
ﬁnancral posmon changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Organlzatlon

SUMMARY OF-SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expendltures reported on' the Schedulé arée reported on the, accrual basis of

,accountmg Such expendntures are recegnlzed followmg the cost pnnclples'.
-contained in, the Unlform Guidance, wherein certam types of expend:tures are not.

allowable or'are Irmlted as to reimbursement. Negatwe amourits" shown on the
’Schedule represent. adjustments or credits made in ’the normal course, of
busnness to.amounts reported as expenditures in pncr years,

INDIRECT.COST RATE

'Communlty Action Program Belknap-Merrimack- Countles Ihe. has: elected notto

-usér the. ten tpercent -de minimis indirect cost-rate allowed urider’ the: Uniform
.Guidance:

FOOD.COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonmionietary. assistance, i§ reported in the Schedule .at the: felr value of the
commodaties tecéived and-disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON.INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON' COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED. ON
' AN AUDIT: OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED :
IN ACCORDANCE E WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING S TANDARDS

To the Board of E)rrectors
Commumty Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc,
*Concord, New Hampshire |

We have audited, in accordance with'the auditing standards generally . accepted irt the Umted
“States of America.and thé- standards -applicable to fi nancual audits contained in Government.
‘Audrtmg Standards issued by the Comptroller General.-of the United States; the financial
statements ‘of Communlty Action "Program. Belknap-Merfimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprof‘t
organization) which comprise the statement of financial position. as .of February.28, :2021, and.
the related stetements of actlvltles functronal expenses,. and cash flows for the' year then-
ended, and-the- related notes o the fi nangial statements and have issued our report thereon-
dated February 14 2022.

Internal. Control Over.Financial Reporting

In.- planntng .and.peiforming our audit of the. financial $tatéments, we considered: Commumty-
Actlon Program Belknap—Memmack Countles Inc's rntemal control oveér fihancial- reportmg
(rntemal control) to ‘determine: the .audit procedures that are appropnate in the crrcumstances
‘for the _purpose of, expressrng our. oprnion on the financial statements, but not for, the ; purpose
of expressing an oprnion on the, effectweness of -Commupnity Actlon ‘Program. Belknap-
Memimack. Countres Inc.'s intemal control. Accordrngly, we do not express .an opinion on the
effactivéness. of ‘Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Countiés, Inc.'s |ntemal
control

A defit crency inintémal control exists when the design or operation of a control does-not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or, detect -and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, oi-.a. combtnatron of defifiencies, in ihternal control, such'that there Is a réasonable
possibllity that a miaterial misstaternent of the entity's finaricial statements will not be- prevented ‘
or detected and’ corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deﬁcrency. ora
combination of déficiencles, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
‘important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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QOur - consrderatlon of . mtemal control wag' fof the limited -purpose described in. the first
,paragraph of this section and was not destgned to |dent|fy aII deﬁcuenc:es |n mternal control
‘.wea'knesses or S|gn|t' cant deﬁcuenmes may exist that have not been tdentif ed.. We‘did rdentify :
-a def c:ency ininternal’ control .described in the accompanying :schedule of findings: and
iquestioned costs agitem. 2021-001 that we cansider tG bé.a material weakness

"Compliaricé and Other Matters:

‘A part..of " obtaining reasohable assurance about whether Community. Actron Program
Belknap Memmack Countres Inc.'s financial statements are free from matenal mlsstatement
‘WE, perfonned tests of its compliance with -certain provisions of laws, regulations contracts
and- grant. agreements ‘noncompliance with which could have ‘a direct. and matenai effect on'
the "determination "of fi nancial. statement amounts. However, providlng ang Oplmon on
icompllance W|th those provrsmns -was not an objective of our audrt and accordlngiy. we do not_

other matters that are requrred to be reported under Govemment Audmng Standards

Puiposé of-this: Report

“The purpose of this report‘ls solely to.describe thé scope of our testing of :internal control and
compllance«and the results of that testing and not to provide an. opinlon on thé effecilveness of
‘the: Organlzatlon S. mtemal control-or ori- comipliance: This report is an mtegral part ofaan audit,
performed in accordance with Governmient Auditing. ~Standards in considering the
' lOrganlzation s intefnal €ontro! and tompliance. Accordingiy. this communication is nof suitable-
for.any other purpose:

'Concord New! Hampshire
.February 14,2022
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- INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
'MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE: UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of, Diréctors
Communlty ‘Action Program Belknap-Memmack Counties, Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We. have: audlted Communlty Action Program Belknap-Meriimack.Counties, Inc’s comphance
with the typés of comphance requirements described in the OMB Comphance Supplement that
-could ‘have a-direct and matenal effect on each of -Community Action- Program' Belknap-
Merrimack: Counties; Inc.'s major federal programs for the year: -ended February 28 ~2021;
Communlty Action Program ‘Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc''s major federal pmgrams are.
identified in the. summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying sthedule of findings
and questuoned costs.

Manggement S. Respons:b:hty
Management"is, responsible for compltance with federal statutes, regulations, and the- terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its fedefal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsnbihty is. to express an opinion on compliance for each of Communlty Action
Program Belknap—Memmack Cotnties, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the .
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We. conducted our audit of compliance.in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in- the: United States of America; the
'standards_ applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the. Compfrol!er General of the United States; and the: audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Pnncrples
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the -audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to. ‘above
that; could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and -performing stich .other
procedures as we. considered 'necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal .program However, our audit does not provide a Iegal -determination: of
Community:Action Program Belknap—Memmack Counties, In¢.'s compliance.
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Opmron on Each Major Federal Program.

in our-opinion, Communrty Action Program: Belknap—Memmack Counties, Inc:.complied, ‘it .all
\matenal respects; with, the. types of’ compliance requwements referred.to above that could have
a.direct: and matedal effect on éach of its. major fedéral programs for-the. year ended February*
+28, 2021.

Report.on.Internal Control Over Complignce

Management of Community Action. Program Belknap: -Merrimack Counties, JInc.'is responsrble=
for establishing .and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with ‘the: types of
compllance requrrements referred to above. In planning ‘and' performing- our audrt of:
complrance we cons:dered Communrty Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc s

intemal ‘ccntrol -over compliance with the types. of requrrements that' could: have-a. dtrect and

matenal effect o .each 'major federal program to determlne the auditing procedures that % are-
appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on comphance for
-each major federal, program. and to test and report of internal. control over, comphance in

accordance W|th‘the Umform»Gurdance but not for the purpose of expressrng an. opmron on.

the*effectlveness of [nternal -control over complrance Accordingly, we do- not:express. an’

opinion’ on ‘the, effectlveness' .of Community Action Program Befknap- Mernmack ‘Courities;.

Ing.'s mtemal contro! -Qver compllance

A- defi crency in intermat. control dver compliance exists. when the design or operat:on of a
contro! over compl:ance does not allow management or employees; in the nonnal course of
performlng. their assrgned ‘functions, to prevent, or detect and-correct,: noncomphancelwnh a .
-type of. comptlance requrrement of a-faderal program on a timely basis. A-material. weakness in
mternal control over complrance is a deficiency, or combination ‘of deficiencies, m'rnternal
control: over comptlance sich that theré is a reasonable, possrbllrty that matérial
noncompllance with @ type ‘of -compliance requirement of a ‘federal prograni -will - Aot” be:
prevented -or detected and corrected on d timely basis..A srgntf icant - deﬁcrency in mternal
controt over comphance is @ det' ciency. or a combination of . defi clencres in intemal contro!
over compllance with a type of eompliance requirement of 4 federal program that is less. severe
.than :a_material weakness in. lntemal ‘control over comphance yet important enough to ‘merit
-gttention by those charged wrth governance.

Our consrderatlon&of internal .control over comphance was for the: limited . PUNPOSe | descnbed in.
the first paragraph ‘of this. sectlon and. was not designed to identify:all defi crencres in mternat'
-control .over comphance that might be. material weaknesses of sngnrt‘ icant deficiencies:: We did;
not. Identlfy any. deficiencies. in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses However matenal weaknesses may exist that have not, been identifi ed.

‘The purpose of this report 6n intémal control over complignce is: solely to describe the scope of

-our testing: of intemal contiol over compliance and the results of that testrng based on the
requrrements of the: Unlform Guidance. Accordingly, this. report is: net suitable for any other
purpose

Goncord; New Hampshire
February 14, 2022
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SCHEDULE: OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS"
FOR.THE YEAR ENDED.FEBRUARY 28,2021

SUM MA&Y OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors Teport expresses an. unmodifi ed opihion on whether the. ﬁnancral statements
~of Communlty Actlon Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, inc: were. prepared in
accordance with, generally accepted accounting pnncrptes

2. 'One . matérial weakness. reiattng to the audit of the financial statements js reported in the-
Indepéndeant. Aud:tors Report on Internal Control Over 'Financial Reportmg and . ooy
Comphance and other Matters Based on_an Audit of Financial Statements Performed -in
Accordance with. Govemment Auditing Standards.

.'3 No 'instances. of noncompllance material to'the financial statemierts of- Community Action
Program Belknap Mernmack Counties, Inc;, -which wauld' be: requwed 10 ‘be: reported in
* dccordance with. Government Auditing Standards were disclosed dufing. the dudit.

4. No sngntf‘cant defi crencres in, internal control over major federal award sprograms are
reported in-the Independent Auo’rtors Report on Compliance for Each "Major. Program and"
:On;’ Internal Control’ Over Comp!:ance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No: material
weaknesses are reported

-9, The audltors report an-compliance for the major-federal award programs fo: Commumty*
Action’ Program Belknap Memmack Courities, Inc. expresses an unmadified opinion on-all.
major programs

‘6. There weré: no audlt finding$ that .are required 16 be reported in accordance’ wrth 2 CFR‘
«section 200 516(a)

7. The programs tested 4s. major programs include:;
.S Department of Health-and -Human Services, Low Income Home. Energy Asslstanoe
'Program 93 568, Medical Assistance Program 93.778, National Family Caregiver
Suppon, Title Itk Part E'93.052, U.S. Department of Agrtculture Food Distribution
Cluster; 10. 565 10.568; 10.569,.U.S, Department of the Treasury, Coronavrrus Relief
Fund 21 019

8. The thréshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs:was $750,000:

-9 .Community Act|on Program.Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to- not be a
low-risk audltee ,
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FINDINGS --FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
MATERIAL WEAKNESS
2021001

‘Conditién;- The fi nanCIaI Statements: presented to thé auditor at the beglnning of. fi eldwork.
included accounts that had- not been reconciled accurately orin a timely. manner.

’Crltena “The: Orgamzation s:internal control procedures should be structured so that accourits
-are reconcnled and reviewed on a timely basis.

-Cause: Sign_iﬁcan! turnover in the ﬁ's;cal;depart_me‘nt of the"organization._

Effect- Significant-.audif and late client entries were. recorded to ensure: accurate account
balances:

Recommendatlon The auditors recommend that the financial close process [ncludes airewew
and reconcmatuon ‘of. aII srgnlﬂcant accounts.

FINDINGS-AND'QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT ’

"None
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-_Plan Gomg forward all reconciliations will.be completed in a timely-manner.
This wdlnensure any errors: and.omissions will bé caught and corrected timely,
All'accounts. will be reviewed and reconciled before fieldwork begms This:
will eliniinate the: need for. sngmﬁcant audit-and late client entries.

Anticipsted Completion Date: 2/14/2022
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR<THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28 2021

‘MATERIALWEAKNESS.

:2020-001-

Condition: The fi nanc|al slatements presented to ‘the auditor at' the- begmnlng of. fi eldwork
understated revenue :and expenses by ‘a matérial amount. This: was pnmanly the- result'of’

improper cut off due to revenue -and expenses related to the fiscal year under audit bemg:_
‘recorded to the subsequent penod

Recommendations The audltors recommend. that the Orgamzatlon mplement :procedures so
that balence sheét atcounts :dre recenculed and reviewed by. management on a monthly basis:.
Further; thejaudltors recommend that the financial closung process be- simplifi éd-and include'a .
review of all ‘significant balance sheet and- profit and loss accounts:

‘Current Status; Open — See 2021 -001..
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